
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

WEST AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

WEDNESDAY 5TH DECEMBER, 2012 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF WEST AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Maureen Braun (Chairman), 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Eva Greenspan (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors 
 

Jack Cohen 
Melvin Cohen 
Claire Farrier 
 

Sury Khatri 
John Marshall 
Hugh Rayner 
 

Agnes Slocombe 
Gill Sargeant 
Darrel Yawitch 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Tom Davey 
Graham Old 
Andrew Harper 
John Hart 
 

Helena Hart 
Charlie O'Macauley 
Lord Palmer 
Mark Shooter 
 

Ansuya Sodha 
Reuben Thompstone 
Zakia Zubairi 
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Aysen Giritli – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Paul Frost  0208 359 2205  paul.frost@barnet.gov.uk 

 
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DIRECTORATE 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes  
 

 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Personal and Prejudicial Interests  
 

 

4.   Public Question Time  
 

 

5.   Members' Item  
 

 

6.   Applications for Planning Permission and Consent under the 
Advertisements Regulations  
 

 

7.   7 Accommodation Road_F03540  
 

1 - 8 

8.   44 Purcells Avenue_H03172  
 

9 - 20 

9.   14 Dollis Avenue _ F02194  
 

21 - 50 

10.   33 Norrice Lea_F03038  
 

51 - 62 

11.   The Post Shop_14 Vivian Avenue_H03469  
 

63 - 68 

12.   The Post Shop_14 Vivian Avenue_H03475  
 

69 - 74 

13.   The Post Shop_14 Vivian Avenue_H03658  
 

75 - 80 

14.   Any other items that the Chairman decides are Urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Paul Frost  0208 
359 2205  paul.frost@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text phone, 
may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms also 
have induction loops. 

 
 



 
 

 

   

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
LOCATION: 7 Accommodation Road, London, NW11 8ED 
REFERENCE: F/03540/12 Received: 16 September 2012 
  Accepted: 16 October 2012 
WARD(S): Childs Hill 

 
Expiry: 11 December 2012 

  Final Revisions:  
APPLICANT: 
 

 Neway International 

PROPOSAL: Retention of roof extension as built (variation of approved 
application Ref: F/01580/10 dated: 22/06/2010) Variation to 
include: reduction in rear rooflights and parapet alterations to 
facilitate construction. 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approve Subject to Conditions 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: Site and Location Plan; Plan No's: AR 22A SCHEME 3; 
Access & Design Statement. 
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

2 The rooflights/windows on the rear elevation shall remain obscured glass and 
restricted to 100mm opening.  
Reason: 
To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential 
properties. 

INFORMATIVE(S): 
1 The reasons for this grant of planning permission or other planning related 

decision are as follows: - 
i)  The proposed development accords with strategic planning guidance and 
policies as set out in The Mayor's London Plan: July 2011, the Core Strategy 
(2012) and the Adopted Local Plan Policies (2012). 
In particular the following policies are relevant: 
 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: 
Relevant policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
 
Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: 
Relevant Policies: DM01, DM02, DM06. 
 
ii)  The proposal is acceptable for the following reason(s): - 
The proposal complies with Council policies that seek to preserve the character of 
areas and individual properties and it is considered to have an acceptable impact 
on the Golders Green Conservation Area. The proposal as conditioned does not 
have a detrimental impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. 

 1.   MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: 
 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government 

AGENDA ITEM 7

1



advice and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning 
Authorities must determine applications in accordance with the statutory 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, and that the 
planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person against 
another.  
 
The ‘National Planning Policy Framework’ (NPPF) was published on 27 March 2012. 
This is a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning system less 
complex and more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 
 
The London Plan is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan. 
 
The NPPF states that "good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places 
better for people."   
 
NPPF retains presumption in favour of sustainable development. This applies unless 
any adverse impacts of a development would "significantly and demonstrably" 
outweigh the benefits. 
 
The Mayor's London Plan July 2011: 
 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets 
out a fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for 
the development of the capital to 2031. It forms part of the development plan for 
Greater London.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to 
ensure that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of 
life. 
 
In June 2005 the Council published its "Three Strands Approach", setting out a 
vision and direction for future development, regeneration and planning within the 
Borough. The approach, which is based around the three strands of Protection, 
Enhancement and Growth, will protect Barnet's high quality suburbs and deliver new 
housing and successful sustainable communities whilst protecting employment 
opportunities. The second strand of the approach, "Enhancement", provides strong 
planning policy protection for preserving the character and openness of lower density 
suburbs and conservation areas. The Three Strands Approach will form the “spatial 
vision” that will underpin the Local Development Framework. 
 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: 
 
Barnet’s Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core Strategy 
and Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents (DPD). The 
Development Management Policies document provides the borough wide planning 
policies that implement the Core Strategy.  
 
Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
 

2



Relevant Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: DM01, DM02, DM06. 
 
Other Material Considerations: 
 
Design Guidance Note No 5 – Extensions to Houses.  
 
The Council Guide ‘Extension to Houses’ was approved by the Planning and 
Environment Committee (The Local Planning Authority) on March 2010. This leaflet 
in the form of a supplementary planning guidance (SPG) sets out information for 
applicants to help them design an extension to their property which would receive 
favourable consideration by the Local Planning Authority and was the subject of 
separate public consultation. 
 
Included advice states that large areas of Barnet are characterised by relatively low 
density suburban housing with an attractive mixture of terrace, semi detached and 
detached houses. The council is committed to protecting, and where possible 
enhancing the character of the borough’s residential areas and retaining an attractive 
street scene. 
 
In respect to amenity, the extension should not be overbearing or unduly obtrusive 
and care should be taken to ensure that they do not result in harmful loss of outlook 
and be overbearing or cause an increased sense of enclosure to adjoining 
properties. 
 
The basic principles the Local Authority has adopted in respect to different types 
developments are that they should not unduly reduce light or outlook from 
neighbouring windows to habitable rooms, overshadow or create an unacceptable 
sense of enclosure to neighbouring gardens. They should not look out of place, 
overbearing or bulky from surrounding areas. 
 
The Council has also adopted (June 2007), following public consultation, a 
Supplementary Planning Document “Sustainable Design and Construction”. The 
SPD provides detailed guidance and sets out how sustainable development will be 
delivered in Barnet. Part 6 of the SPD relates to generic environmental requirements 
to ensure that new development within Barnet meets sufficiently high environmental 
and design standards. 
 

Barnet will soon be consulting on two lower tier documents to implement the Core 
Strategy and Development Management Policies documents. These are now 
material considerations. The links to the DPRs for each document are set out below. 

Residential Design Guidance: 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=4342  

Sustainable Design and Construction: 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=4343 
 
 
 

3



Relevant Planning History: 
 
Application: Planning Number: F/00617/11 
Validated: 04/03/2011 Type: APF 
Status: DEC Date: 18/04/2011 
Summary: Refused Case Officer: Robert Marchant 
Description: 
 
Reason for 
refusal: 

Formation of a mansard roof to rear elevation and two front dormer windows. 
 
The proposed dormer windows by reason of their siting, size, height, bulk and 
design would form a visually dominant, obtrusive feature detrimental to the 
character and appearance of the host property and the Golders Green Conservation 
Area. This is contrary to policies GBEnv1, GBEnv2, D1, D2 & HC1 of the adopted 
Unitary Development Plan (2006). 

 
 
Application: Planning Number: F/01580/10 
Validated: 21/04/2010 Type: APF 
Status: DEC Date: 25/06/2010 
Summary: Approved Case Officer: Robert Marchant 
Description: Extension of roof including raised ridge height and rear mansard roof to provide an 

additional floor of office space. 

 
 
Application: Planning Number: F/03611/11 
Validated: 22/08/2011 Type: APF 
Status: DEC Date: 21/11/2011 
Summary: Refusal Case Officer: Robert Marchant 
Description: 
 
 
Reason for 
refusal: 

Alterations to mansard roof to raise the ridge to the rear elevation and Installation of 
roof lights to front and rear.  
 
The proposed development, by reason of the size of the rear rooflights, the size of 
the buttresses and the height of the rear parapet is out of character with surrounding 
buildings and causes harm to the character and appearance of the Golders Green 
Town Centre conservation area contrary to policies GBEnv1, GBEnv4, D1, D2 and 
HC1 of the Barnet Adopted Unitary Development Plan (2006). 

  
Consultations and Views Expressed: 
 
Neighbours Consulted: 92 Replies: 9     
Neighbours Wishing To Speak 2     
 
The objections raised may be summarised as follows: 

• The development is a significant impairment on our lives and property. 

• The windows are not obscured - windows appear to be only temporarily 
obscured. They are also not obscured but in fact have a film covering which 
can be removed at a later stage.  

• The windows open and are regularly opened beyond 100mm 

• The buttresses are unsightly and not in keeping with the neighbourhood and 
should be removed.  

• The overall design is unapproved and is unsightly as agreed in Committee.  

• The construction was in breach of the approved plans, and a demolition order 
would be issued – we had been under the impression that a demolition order 
was to be issued and wonder why no steps have been taken to rectify this 
breach.  

• No enforcement action has been taken over the past one year.   

4



• Loss of the amenity of my garden and the change in character to the rear of 
our properties.  

• Rear aspect intrudes in the privacy of the properties of Woodstock Road 
 
Internal /Other Consultations: 
 

• Urban Design & Heritage - No objection. 
 
Date of Site Notice: 25 October 2012 
 
2.  PLANNING APPRAISAL 
 
Site Description and Surroundings: 
 
The application site is a terraced property situated on Accommodation Road, this is a 
rear service road located behind Golders Green Road. The site is located within the 
boundary of the Golders Green Conservation Area and to the rear of a number of 
Grade II listed buildings which are situated along Golders Green Road. 
 
The properties along Accommodation Road back onto the rear gardens of the 
properties along Woodstock Road, which is a residential road running parallel to 
Accommodation Road.   
 

Proposal: 
 
The application is for the retention of roof extension as built (variation of approved 
application reference: F/01580/10 dated: 22/06/2012). The variation includes a 
reduction/alteration in the number of rear rooflights and changes to the parapet.  
 
There are now 4 rooflights on the rear elevation in comparison to the previously 
approved application F/01580/10 which proposed five rear rooflights. The rooflights 
measure 1.2m x 0.9m and they have been installed with a restricted 100mm opening 
with obscured film.  
 
There are no proposed changes to the front elevation rooflights to that which was 
previously approved within application F/01580/10.  
 
The previously approved application (F/01580/10) was determined at planning sub-
committee in June 2010 was for the conversion of the roof into office space involves 
the raising of the ridge height by approximately 40cm in order to accommodate 
additional headroom. The proposed conversion also involved the conversion of the 
rear roof slope, which will alter to a mansard roof form and four rooflights for the front 
and rear elevation. 
 

Planning Considerations: 
 
The changes from the previous permission relate solely to changes the rear 
rooflights and parapet/buttresses. 
 
There have been no changes to the front rooflights to that previously approved in 

5



planning application F/01580/10. Three rooflights at the front elevation of the 
property and are considered to be in keeping with the Golders Green Conservation 
Area. The rooflights consist of a conservation style with the maximum dimensions of 
460mm x 610mm and have a central, vertical glazing bar.  
 
The raising of the ridge level by approximately 450-500mm is as per the approved 
application it is relatively small, taking it slightly above the property at number 6, and 
is no higher than the ridge level of number 8 and does not look conspicuous in 
relation to surrounding properties or significantly out of character with the area. The 
mansard roof conversion occurs to the rear of the roof slope and the principle of the 
mansard roof has been granted consent previously F/01580/10. The mansard roof to 
the rear is within the footprint of the building and is slightly pitched away from the 
rear gardens of 14 and 16 Woodstock Road, which assists with reducing the sense 
of enclosure to these properties. As the property is a terrace, this element is not 
visible from the front elevation adjacent to Accommodation Road. It is therefore not 
envisaged that this part of the proposal would have a demonstrable harmful impact 
on the Golders Green Conservation Area.   
 
A previous application (F/00617/11) for "Alterations to mansard roof to raise the ridge 
to the rear elevation and Installation of roof lights to front and rear" was refused for 
the following reason: 
 
The proposed development, by reason of the size of the rear rooflights, the size of 
the buttresses and the height of the rear parapet is out of character with surrounding 
buildings and causes harm to the character and appearance of the Golders Green 
Town Centre conservation area contrary to policies GBEnv1, GBEnv4, D1, D2 and 
HC1 of the Barnet Adopted Unitary Development Plan (2006). 
 
The raising of the rear parapet is no longer proposed as part of the current 
application. The rooflights inserted on the rear elevation face the rear of these 
properties on Woodstock road. The windows have an obscured film fitted to ensure 
that the amenities of adjacent residents on Woodstock Road are protected. The 
windows have been restricted to 100mm opening to aid ventilation which is minimal 
and will not give rise to issues of overlooking or loss of privacy to neighbouring 
occupiers. The area of glazing is broadly similar to that previously approved in 
application F/01580/10 and the number of windows reduced from 5 to 4 since the 
previous refusal and thus is considered to be acceptable. It is considered that with 
the reduction of the number of rooflights and the obscured film, the proposal do not 
cause demonstrable harm to the amenities visual appearance of the property or the 
residential amenity of occupiers of properties on Woodstock Avenue.  
 
The raising of the parapets/buttresses to the sides is not considered to warrant 
refusal for the application. This aspect of the proposals is not considered to harm the 
character and appearance of the application site, the amenity of neighbouring 
occupiers or the character and appearance of the conservation area. The 
amendments to the previously approved application F/01580/10 are considered to be 
appropriate to the application site and will not harm the amenities of neighbouring 
occupiers.  
 
 

6



3.  COMMENTS ON GROUNDS OF OBJECTIONS 
 

1. The windows are not obscured - windows appear to be only temporarily 
obscured. They are also not obscured but in fact have a film covering which 
can be removed at a later stage.  

A condition has been attached to ensure that the film remains in place in order to 
protect the amenity of neighbouring residents. 
  

2. The windows open and are regularly opened beyond 100mm. 
The windows are only restricted to an opening of 100mm to aid ventilation - this does 
not result in overlooking to gardens. 
 

3. The buttresses are unsightly and not in keeping with the neighbourhood and 
should be removed.  

This was required for construction purposes and as explained above is not 
considered to harm to the neighbourhood. 
 

4. The overall design is unapproved and is unsightly as agreed in Committee.  
The design of the proposal does not cause a demonstrable harm to the character of 
the area. 
 

5. The construction was in breach of the approved plans, and a demolition order 
would be issued – we had been under the impression that a demolition order 
was to be issued and wonder why no steps have been taken to rectify this 
breach. No enforcement action has been taken over the past one year.   

The enforcement team has been liaising to ensure that the development complies 
with the previously approved plans, this current application has been a result of 
enforcement investigations. 
 

6. Loss of the amenity of my garden and the change in character to the rear of 
our properties. Rear aspect intrudes in the privacy of the properties of 
Woodstock Road. 

The rear windows are restricted to 100mm opening and have been inserted an 
obscured film in order to protect the amenity of neighbouring residents. 
 
4.    EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
The proposals do not conflict with either Barnet Council’s Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in our Equality Scheme and supports the council in meeting its 
statutory equality responsibilities. 
 
5.  CONCLUSION 
 
The proposal would comply with council policies that seek to preserve the character 
of areas and individual properties and it is considered to have an acceptable impact 
on the Golders Green Conservation Area. The size, siting and design of the 
extension is such that it would not have a detrimental impact on the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers. The application is therefore recommended for APPROVAL 
 

7



 
SITE LOCATION PLAN: 7 Accommodation Road, London, NW11 8ED 
 
REFERENCE:  F/03540/12 
 
 

 
 
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database right 2012. 
All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number LA100017674.  
 
 
 

8



 
 
 
LOCATION: 44 Purcells Avenue, Edgware, Middx, HA8 8DZ 
REFERENCE: H/03172/12 Received: 16 August 2012 
  Accepted: 15 August 2012 
WARD: Edgware Expiry: 10 October 2012 
  Final Revisions:  
APPLICANT: Mr Prince 
PROPOSAL: Variation of condition 1 (Plan numbers) for planning permission 

H/03226/10 dated 16/12/10 for "Amendment to previous 
planning application allowed under appeal reference 
APP/N5090/A/08/2082935/NWF dated 22/01/2009 for 
'Conversion of existing house into 4x2 bed flats and 1x1 bed 
flat, First floor rear extension and extension to roof with 
rooflights to front, side and rear elevations and conversion of 
garage to habitable room'. 
 
Amendments include increase in height to approved first floor 
rear extension, and infill ground floor front extension. 

Approve Subject to Unilateral Undertaking 
RECOMMENDATION I: 
That the applicant and any other person having a requisite interest be invited to 
enter by way of an agreement into a planning obligation under Section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any other legislation which is 
considered necessary for the purposes seeking to secure the following: 
1 Paying the council's legal and professional costs of preparing the 

Agreement and any other enabling agreements; 
2 All obligations listed below to become enforceable in accordance with a 

timetable to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority; 
3 Libraries (financial) £451.00 

A contribution towards Library Facilities and Resources in the borough 
 

4 
Health £3,522.00 

A contribution towards Health Facilities and Resources in the borough 
 

5 
Monitoring of the Agreement £198.65 

Contribution towards the Council's costs in monitoring the obligations of the 
agreement. 

 RECOMMENDATION II: 
That upon completion of the agreement the Acting Assistant Director of 
Planning and Development Management approve the planning application 
reference: H/03172/12 under delegated powers subject to the following 
conditions: - 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 838-BA-001A, 838-BA-002A, 838-BA-003A, 838-BA-
004A, 838-BA-005, 838-BA-006, 838-BA-007, 838-BA-008, 838-BA-009, 838-
BA-038, 838-BA-040, 838-BA-042, 838-BA-055, 838-BA-056B, 838-BA-057B, 
838-BA-058B, 838-BA-059, 838-BA-060, 838-BA-061, 838-BA-062, 838-BA-063, 
838-BA-065, 838-BA-066 
Reason: 

AGENDA ITEM 8

9



For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 

permission.  
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

3 The materials to be used in the external surfaces of the building(s) shall match 
those used in the existing building(s) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
local planning authority.  
Reason: 
To safeguard the visual amenities of the building and the surrounding area. 

4 No structure or erection with a height exceeding 1.05m above footway level shall 
be placed along the frontage(s) of Purcells Avenue and Green Lane from a point 
2.4m from the highway boundary for a distance of 2.4m on both sides of the 
vehicular access(es).  
Reason: 
To prevent danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining 
highway and the premises. 

5 Before the development hereby permitted commences, details of enclosures and 
screened facilities for the storage of recycling containers and wheeled refuse 
bins or other refuse storage containers where applicable, together with a 
satisfactory point of collection shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority and shall be provided at the site in accordance with 
the approved details before the development is occupied. 
Reason: 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance for the development and satisfactory 
accessibility; and to protect the amenities of the area. 

6 Before the development hereby permitted is brought into use or occupied the 
site shall be enclosed except at the permitted points of access in accordance 
with details previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the appearance of 
the locality and/or the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties 
and to confine access to the permitted points in the interest of the flow of traffic 
and conditions of general safety on the adjoining highway. 

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of any development order made under Section 
59 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order), the following operation(s) shall not be undertaken without 
the prior specific permission of the Local Planning Authority Insertion of flank 
windows in the east first floor flank wall facing no.42 Purcells Avenue. 
Reason: 
To safeguard neighbouring privacy and amenity. 

8 Prior to the occupation of the units a copy of the Pre-completion Sound 
Insulation Test Certificate of Part E of the Building Regulations 2000 (or any 
subsequent amendment in force at the time of implementation of the permission) 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and shall indicate at least 3 
decibels above the Performance Standard. 
Reason: 
To protect the amenities of future and neighbouring residential occupiers. 

9 No construction work resulting from the planning permission shall be carried out 

10



on the premises at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays, before 8.00 
am or after 1.00 pm on Saturdays, or before 8.00 am or after 6.00pm on other 
days unless previously approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of adjoining residential properties. 

10 Before the development hereby permitted is occupied the parking 
spaces/garages shown on Plan 838-BA-43 Revision C shall be provided and 
shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles in 
connection with the approved development. 
Reason: 
To ensure that parking is provided in accordance with the council's standards in 
the interests of pedestrian and highway safety, the free flow of traffic and in 
order to protect the amenities of the area. 

INFORMATIVE(S): 
1 The reasons for this grant of planning permission or other planning related 

decision are as follows: - 
i)  The proposed development accords with strategic planning guidance and 
policies as set out in The London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 
2004) and the Adopted Barnet Unitary Development Plan (2006). 
In particular the following polices are relevant: 
Adopted Barnet Unitary Development Plan (2006): The proposed development 
accords with strategic planning guidance and policies as set out in The London 
Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004) and the Adopted Barnet Unitary 
Development Plan (2006). 
In particular the following polices are relevant: 
Adopted Barnet Unitary Development Plan 2006: GBEnv1, D1, D2, D5, CS2, 
CS8, IMP1, IMP2, M11, M12, M14, H23, H26, H27 
 
Supplementary Design Guidance 5: Extensions to Houses 
 
Supplementary Design Guidance 7: Residential Conversions 
 
Supplementary Planning Document: Sustainable Design and Construction 
 
Supplementary Planning Document : Planning Obligations 

Supplementary Planning Document : Contributions to Education 

Supplementary Planning Document : Contributions to Libraries 
Supplementary Planning Document : Contributions to Health 
 
ii)  The proposal is acceptable for the following reason(s): - 
 
The proposed development would provide additional housing units to meet a 
known demand. The proposals would not have a detrimental impact on the 
character and appearance of the area, or harm the amenities of neighbouring 
occupiers.  It accords with the relevant policies. 
The proposed development includes provision for appropriate contributions in 
accordance with Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010. 

11



2 Any development or conversion which necessitates the removal, changing, or 
creation of an address or addresses must be officially registered by the Council 
through the formal ‘Street Naming and Numbering’ process.  
The Council of the London Borough of Barnet is the Street Naming and 
Numbering Authority and is the only organisation that can create or change 
addresses within its boundaries.  Applications are the responsibility of the 
developer or householder who wish to have an address created or amended. 
Occupiers of properties which have not been formally registered can face a 
multitude of issues such as problems with deliveries, rejection of banking / 
insurance applications, problems accessing key council services and most 
importantly delays in an emergency situation. 
 
Further details and the application form can be downloaded from: 
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/naming-and-numbering-applic-form.pdf 
or requested from the Street Naming and Numbering Team via email: 
street.naming@barnet.gov.uk or by telephoning: 0208 359 7294. 

3 The Mayor of London introduced a Community Infrastructure Levy on 1st April 
2012 setting a rate of £35 per sqm on all 'chargeable development' in Barnet.  

This will be recorded to the register of Local Land Charges as a legal charge 
upon your site should you commence development.  This Mayoral CIL charge 
will be passed across to Transport for London to support Crossrail, London's 
highest infrastructure priority.  

If Affordable Housing Relief or Charitable Relief applies to your development 
then this may reduce the final amount you are required to pay; such relief must 
be applied for prior to commencement of development using the 'Claiming 
Exemption or Relief' form available from the Planning Portal website: 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil  

You will be sent a 'Liability Notice' that will provide full details of the charge and 
to whom it has been apportioned for payment. If you wish to identify named 
parties other than the applicant for this permission as the liable party for paying 
this levy, please submit to the Council an 'Assumption of Liability' notice, this is 
also available from the Planning Portal website.  

The Community Infrastructure Levy becomes payable upon commencement of 
development. You are required to submit a 'Notice of Commencement' to the 
Council's CIL Team prior to commencing on site, and failure to provide such 
information at the due date will incur both surcharges and penalty interest. There 
are various other charges and surcharges that may apply if you fail to meet 
statutory requirements, such requirements will all be set out in the Liability 
Notice you will receive.  

If you fail to receive a 'Liability Notice' from the Council within 1 month of this 
grant of planning permission, please contact us: cil@barnet.gov.uk 

 
RECOMMENDATION III 
That if an agreement has not been completed by 06/03/2013, that unless otherwise 
agreed in writing, the Assistant Director of Planning and Development Management 
should REFUSE the application H/03172/12 under delegated powers for the 

12



following reason/s: 
 
The development would require a Unilateral Undertaking/Section 106 Agreement 
and no formal undertaking has been given to the Council, as a result the proposed 
development would, by reason of the developer not meeting the identified additional 
health and library facilities, and the associated monitoring costs which would be 
incurred by the community as a result of the development, be contrary to Policies 
CS10, CS11 & CS15 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (Adopted 2012); and the 
adopted Supplementary Planning Documents, "Contributions to Health Facilities", 
“Contributions to Libraries” and "Planning Obligations". 
 
1.     MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government 
advice and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning 
Authorities must determine applications in accordance with the statutory 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, and that the 
planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person against 
another.  
 
The ‘National Planning Policy Framework’ (NPPF) was published on 27 March 2012. 
This is a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning system less 
complex and more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 
 
The London Plan is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan. 
 
The NPPF states that "good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places 
better for people."   
 
NPPF retains presumption in favour of sustainable development. This applies unless 
any adverse impacts of a development would "significantly and demonstrably" 
outweigh the benefits. 
 

The Mayor's London Plan July 2011: 3.5, 6.1, 7.4, 7.6 
 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets 
out a fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for 
the development of the capital to 2031. It forms part of the development plan for 
Greater London.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to 
ensure that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of 
life. 
 
The Council has also adopted (June 2007), following public consultation, a 
Supplementary Planning Document “Sustainable Design and Construction”. The 
SPD provides detailed guidance that supplements policies in the Unitary 

13



Development Plan, and sets out how sustainable development will be delivered in 
Barnet. Part 6 of the SPD relates to generic environmental requirements to ensure 
that new development within Barnet meets sufficiently high environmental and 
design standards.  
 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: 
 
Barnet’s Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core Strategy 
and Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents (DPD). Until 
the Local Plan (Core Strategy and Development Management Policies documents) is 
complete, 183 policies within the adopted Unitary Development Plan (UDP) remain. 
The replacement of these 183 policies is set out in both the Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies DPD. 
 
The Core Strategy was adopted by the Council on September 11 2012. Therefore 
very significant weight should be given to the 16 policies in the CS.  The National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (para 216) sets out the weight that can be given 
to emerging policies as a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications. 
 
Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5, CS15 
 
Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: 
 
The Development Management Policies document provides the borough wide 
planning policies that implement the Core Strategy. These policies will be used for 
day-to-day decision making. 
 
Development Management Policies was adopted by the Council on September 11 
2012. Therefore very significant weight should be given to the 18 policies in the 
DMP. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (para 216) sets out the 
weight that can be given to emerging policies as a material consideration in the 
determination of planning applications. 
 
Relevant Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: DM01, DM02, DM08, 
DM17. 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
 
H/03226/10 - Amendment to previous planning application allowed under appeal 
reference APP/N5090/A/08/2082935/NWF dated 22/01/2009 for 'Conversion of 
existing house into 4x2 bed flats and 1x1 bed flat, First floor rear extension and 
extension to roof with rooflights to front, side and rear elevations and conversion of 
garage to habitable room'. The proposed amendments namely include a ground and 
first floor front extension, alterations and extensions to roof (including 0.1m increase 
in height of apex) with introduction of side and rear dormers to facilitate a loft 
conversion and omission of the first floor rear extension. - Approved - 16/12/2010 
 
 
 

14



Consultations and Views Expressed: 
 
Neighbours Consulted: 41 Replies: 10 
Neighbours Wishing To Speak 1   
 
 
The objections raised may be summarised as follows: 
 

• Original application should not have been approved 

• Roofline should not be increased as this sets others being able to do so in the 
future 

• Loss of privacy 

• Proposals are out of character for the area and would change the skyline 

• Lack of room on such a small plot for extension of this size 

• Cars enter driveway illegally over kerb 

• Design and access statement is impossible to understand 

• Most people have been on holiday and unable to respond 

• Boundary fencing should be provided 

• Committee were reluctant to agree previous proposals so further increases 
should not be supported 

• Lack of provision for refuse/recycling 

• Conversion of properties to smaller units would damage character of the locality 
 
Internal /Other Consultations: 
 
N/A 
 
Date of Site Notice: 30 August 2012 
 
2. PLANNING APPRAISAL 
 
Site Description and Surroundings: 
 
The site property is a detached dwellinghouse on the north side of Purcells Avenue, 
sited adjacent to the junction with Green Lane. 
The site locality can be characterised as predominantly being residential single-
family dwelling houses. The site has an existing area of hardstanding to the front of 
the property which is used as a parking area. The site property has previously been 
extended by means of two storey side and rear extensions. 
 
Proposal: 
 
The proposals are for amendments to the approved scheme under reference 
H/03226/10. Planning permission was granted for extensions to the property in 
association with the conversion of the property into 5 flats following the approval at 
appeal. 
 
The current application seeks planning permission for revised extensions to the 
property in association with the conversion of the property into 5 flats. 

15



The changes to the previously approved scheme are as follows: 
 
The amendments include an increase of 200mm height to the hipped roof to the rear 
of the property and an infill to the recess to the front elevation. 
 
Planning Considerations: 
 
The main issues are considered to be: 
 

• Whether the principle of the development is acceptable 

• Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring and future occupiers 

• Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on the character and 
appearance of the streetscene and general locality 

• Whether the proposals would harm highway and pedestrian safety 

• Whether the proposals make appropriate provision towards local education, 
libraries and health infrastructure 

 
Policy context 
 
Since the time of the previous approval, the most recent version of the Mayor's 
London Plan, as well as the Barnet Core Strategy and Development Management 
Policies have been adopted. 
 
Whether the principle of the development is acceptable 
 
The application follows the approval of application H/03226/10 for the conversion of 
the property to five flats with extensions. The principle of the conversion was 
established under application ref: H/01592/08 which was allowed at appeal. It is not 
considered that any changes in policy since this time would warrant refusal of the 
application. It is also noteworthy that the applicant could implement planning 
permission H/03226/10 which is extant. 
 
Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring and future occupiers 
 
The proposed extensions consist of an increase of 200mm in height to the hipped 
roof to the rear of the property and an infill to the recess to the front elevation. 
 
The extension to the front of the property infills an area behind the greater approved 
projection on the side nearest no.42. As a result this would have no appreciable 
impact on the visual or residential amenities of no.42. 
 
The proposed increase to height of the first floor rear extension by 200mm. The apex 
of this pitched roof would be 7m from the boundary with no.42. Consequently given 
the relatively small increase to the height of the roof it is not considered that the 
proposals would harm neighbouring amenity. 
 
It is noted that three of the proposed units previously approved would no longer meet 
internal space standards specified by policy 3.5 of the London Plan.  

16



The current proposals would slightly improve this, as one of the units at ground floor 
would be closer to meeting the standard. Ultimately, given that the existing 
permission is still extant, it is not considered that refusal of the current scheme on 
the grounds that three of the units fail to meet current London Plan standards. 
 
It is not considered that any policy changes have occurred that would warrant refusal 
of the application, given that the content of the relevant policies is substantially the 
same. 
 
Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on the character and 
appearance of the streetscene and general locality 
 
The rear of the site is visible from Green Lane. Consequently the additional increase 
to the height of the rear projection would be perceptible from this viewpoint. However 
the extension would be no deeper and the highest point of the roof would not be 
higher than the highest part of the roof.  
 
The front extension would infill an area that does not extend as far as the already 
approved front extension on the side nearest no.42. Therefore this would not appear 
unduly dominant in the context of the streetscene. 
 
It is not considered that the proposals would harm the character and appearance of 
the streetscene and general locality. 
 
Whether the proposals would harm highway and pedestrian safety 
 
The proposals are for the conversion of the existing dwellinghouse into 2no. 1 
bedroom flats, 2no. 2 bedroom flats and 1 no. 3 bedroom flat. 
 
It should be noted that no highway objections were made to the previous proposals 
for 4no 2 bedroom flats and 1 no. 1 bedroom flat. The principle of the conversion has 
already been established by the appeal decision and the subsequent approval. The 
proposed change to the composition of the flats would not materially impact highway 
or pedestrian safety. The parking layout is the same as previously approved under 
application ref: H/03226/10. 
 
It is not considered that any changes in policy or circumstance have occurred that 
would warrant refusal of the application on highways grounds. 
 
Whether the proposals make appropriate provision towards local education, libraries 
and health infrastructure 
 
Under the revised layout, the following planning obligations would be required. 

• £2,650.00 towards education costs associated with the development. 

• £451.00 towards library costs associated with the development. 

• £3638.00 towards health costs associated with the development. 

• £336.93 towards associated monitoring costs. 

17



3. COMMENTS ON GROUNDS OF OBJECTIONS 
 
Original application should not have been approved - The previous decision cannot 
be challenged at this stage and is a material consideration. 
 
Roofline should not be increased as this sets others being able to do so in the future 
- Proposals need to be assessed on their own merits 
 
Loss of privacy - Considered in the main report 
 
Proposals are out of character for the area and would change the skyline - 
Considered in the main report 
 
Lack of room on such a small plot for extension of this size - Considered in the main 
report 
 
Cars enter driveway illegally over kerb - Permission would be required from the 
Council for any changes required to the vehicular accesses 
 
Design and access statement is impossible to understand - It is considered that the 
document is adequate for the purposes of assessing the application 
 
Most people have been on holiday and unable to respond - Consultation has been 
undertaken in accordance with the Council's code of practice which exceed statutory 
requirements 
 
Boundary fencing should be provided - A condition is attached requiring this 
 
Committee were reluctant to agree previous proposals so further increases should 
not be supported - Proposals need to be assessed on their own merits 
 
Lack of provision for refuse/recycling - It is considered that there is adequate room 
on the site to provide acceptable refuse storage. Therefore a condition is suggested. 
 
Conversion of properties to smaller units would damage character of the locality - 
Considered in the main report 
 
4. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
The proposals do not conflict with either Barnet Council’s Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in our Equality Scheme and supports the council in meeting its 
statutory equality responsibilities. Applicant seeks to extend and convert property to 
provide total of four self-contained units for which there is an identified need. 
 
5. SECTION 106 ISSUES 
 

The contributions are necessary, directly relevant and fairly and reasonably related 
in scale and kind to the development, in accordance with Regulation 122 of The 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 
 

18



6. CONCLUSION 
 
Subject to the signing of the formal Unilateral Undertaking in relation to contribution 
to educational, libraries and health facilities the application is recommended for 
APPROVAL.  

19



 
 
SITE LOCATION PLAN: 44 Purcells Avenue, Edgware, Middx, HA8 8DZ 
 
REFERENCE:  H/03172/12 
 
 

 
 
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database right 2012. 
All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number LA100017674.  
 
   
   
 

20



 
 
 
LOCATION: 14 Dollis Avenue, London, N3 1TX 
REFERENCE: F/02194/12 Received: 07 June 2012 
  Accepted: 08 June 2012 
WARD: Finchley Church End Expiry: 03 August 2012 
  Final Revisions:  
APPLICANT:  Fusion Residential 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a detached 2-

Storey building with rooms in the roofspace and basement 
including basement parking and access ramp to provide 6 no. 2 
bed flats.  Single storey detached poolhouse in rear garden. 

Approve Subject to Unilateral Undertaking 
RECOMMENDATION I: 
That the applicant and any other person having a requisite interest be invited to 
enter by way of an agreement into a planning obligation under Section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any other legislation which is 
considered necessary for the purposes seeking to secure the following: 
1 Paying the council's legal and professional costs of preparing the 

Agreement and any other enabling agreements; 
2 All obligations listed below to become enforceable in accordance with a 

timetable to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority; 
3 Education Facilities (excl. libraries) £4,005.00 

A contribution towards the provision of Education Facilities in the borough. 
 

4 
Libraries (financial) £590.00 

A contribution towards Library Facilities and Resources in the borough 
 

5 
Health £5,088.00 

A contribution towards Health Facilities and Resources in the borough 
 

6 
Monitoring of the Agreement £484.15 

Contribution towards the Council's costs in monitoring the obligations of the 
agreement. 

 RECOMMENDATION II: 
That upon completion of the agreement the Acting Assistant Director of 
Planning and Development Management approve the planning application 
reference: F/02194/12 under delegated powers subject to the following 
conditions: - 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 12 0216-100, 12 0216-2B, 12 0216-3A, 12 0216-4D, 
12 0216-5 A, 12 0216-6, an Arboricultural Implication Assessment and 
Arboricultural Method Statement by Patrick Stileman Ltd, a Tree Survey Report, 
a Design and Access Statement, Demolition  and Sit Waste Management 
Statement and a Sustainability Checklist. 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 
permission.  
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

21



3 Before the development hereby permitted is occupied the parking 
spaces/garages shown on the hereby approved plans shall be provided and 
shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles in 
connection with the approved development. 
Reason: 
To ensure that parking is provided in accordance with the council's standards in 
the interests of pedestrian and highway safety, the free flow of traffic and in 
order to protect the amenities of the area. 

4 Before the development hereby permitted commences, details of the materials to 
be used for the external surfaces of the building(s) and hard surfaced areas shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such details as approved. 
Reason: 
To safeguard the visual amenities of the locality. 

5 Before the development hereby permitted is brought into use or occupied the 
site shall be enclosed except at the permitted points of access in accordance 
with details previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the appearance of 
the locality and/or the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties 
and to confine access to the permitted points in the interest of the flow of traffic 
and conditions of general safety on the adjoining highway. 

6 No construction work resulting from the planning permission shall be carried out 
on the premises at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays, before 8.00 
am or after 1.00 pm on Saturdays, or before 8.00 am or after 6.00pm on other 
days.  
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of adjoining residential properties. 

7 Before the building hereby permitted is occupied the proposed first and second 
floor kitchen and bathroom windows as shown on drawing 12 0216-2 B in the 
side elevations facing 12 and 16 Dollis Avenue shall be glazed with obscure 
glass only and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter and shall be 
permanently fixed shut with only a fanlight opening. 
Reason:  
To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential 
properties. 

8 Before the development hereby permitted commences on site, details of all 
extraction and ventilation equipment shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority and implemented in accordance with agreed details 
before the use is commenced. 
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the enjoyment or 
amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties. 

9 A scheme of hard and soft landscaping, including details of existing trees to be 
retained, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before the development, hereby permitted, is commenced.  
Reason: 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development. 

22



 
10 All work comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried out 

before the end of the first planting and seeding season following occupation of 
any part of the buildings or completion of the development, whichever is sooner, 
or commencement of the use. 
Reason: 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development. 

11 Any existing tree shown to be retained or trees or shrubs to be planted as part of 
the approved landscaping scheme which are removed, die, become severely 
damaged or diseased within five years of the completion of development shall be 
replaced with trees or shrubs of appropriate size and species in the next planting 
season. 
Reason: 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development. 

12 The dwelling(s) shall achieve a Code Level 3 in accordance with the Code for 
Sustainable Homes Technical Guide (October 2008) (or such national measure 
of sustainability for house design that replaces that scheme).  No dwelling shall 
be occupied until a Final Code Certificate has been issued certifying that Code 
Level 3 has been achieved and this certificate has been submitted to and 
approved by the local planning authority. 
Reason: 
To ensure that the development is sustainable and complies with policy DM02 of 
the adopted Local Plan (2006) and the adopted Sustainable Design and 
Construction Supplementary Planning Document (June 2007). 

13 Before installation of any air conditioning units, lifts or any other plant or 
ventilation openings, a scheme for controlling their environmental impact shall be 
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The impacts 
to be controlled include noise and vibration. 
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of adjoining residential properties. 

INFORMATIVE(S): 
1 The reasons for this grant of planning permission or other planning related 

decision are as follows: - 
i)  The proposed development accords with strategic planning guidance and 
policies as set out in The Mayor's London Plan: July 2011, Core Strategy 
(Adopted) 2012 and the Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012. 
In particular the following policies are relevant: 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: 
Relevant policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5, CS10, CS15. 
 
Development Management Policies (Adopted)2012: 
Relevant Policies: DM01, DM02, DM03, DM08, DM14 and DM17. 
 
ii)  The proposal is acceptable for the following reason(s): - Having taken all 
material considerations into account, it is considered that subject to compliance 
with the attached conditions, the proposal would comply with the Council's 
policies and guidelines and would not cause unacceptable harm to the area, the 
existing building or the amenities of any neighbouring property. The proposals 
are acceptable on highway grounds. The proposed development includes 

23



provision for appropriate contributions in accordance with Regulation 122 of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 
The proposed development includes provision for appropriate contributions in 
accordance with Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010. 

2 If the development is carried out it will be necessary for a crossover to be formed 
on the footway by the Highway Authority at the applicant's expense and you may 
obtain an estimate for this work from the Highways Group, Building 4, North 
London Business Park, London, N11 1NP (telephone 020 8359 3018). 

3 The Mayor of London introduced a Community Infrastructure Levy on 1st April 
2012 setting a rate of £35 per sqm on all 'chargeable development' in Barnet. 
Your planning application has been assessed to require a charge of £30,030. 

This will be recorded to the register of Local Land Charges as a legal charge 
upon your site should you commence development.  This Mayoral CIL charge 
will be passed across to Transport for London to support Crossrail, London's 
highest infrastructure priority.  

If Affordable Housing Relief or Charitable Relief applies to your development 
then this may reduce the final amount you are required to pay; such relief must 
be applied for prior to commencement of development using the 'Claiming 
Exemption or Relief' form available from the Planning Portal website: 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil  

You will be sent a 'Liability Notice' that will provide full details of the charge and 
to whom it has been apportioned for payment. If you wish to identify named 
parties other than the applicant for this permission as the liable party for paying 
this levy, please submit to the Council an 'Assumption of Liability' notice, this is 
also available from the Planning Portal website.  

The Community Infrastructure Levy becomes payable upon commencement of 
development. You are required to submit a 'Notice of Commencement' to the 
Council's CIL Team prior to commencing on site, and failure to provide such 
information at the due date will incur both surcharges and penalty interest. There 
are various other charges and surcharges that may apply if you fail to meet 
statutory requirements, such requirements will all be set out in the Liability 
Notice you will receive.  

If you fail to receive a 'Liability Notice' from the Council within 1 month of this 
grant of planning permission, please contact us: cil@barnet.gov.uk 

4 Any redundant crossovers must be removed and reinstated back to footway 
construction at the end of the works.  Any street furniture. lighting column, road 
markings or parking bays will be relocated at the applicants expense,  under a 
rechargeable works agreement by the Council's Council’s term contractor for 
Highway Works. 

 
RECOMMENDATION III 
That if an agreement has not been completed by 21/12/2012, that unless otherwise 
agreed in writing, the Assistant Director of Planning and Development Management 
should REFUSE the application F/02194/12 under delegated powers for the 
following reason: 

24



1. The development would require a Unilateral Undertaking and no formal 
undertaking is given to the Council, as a result the proposed development would, 
by reason of the developer not meeting the identified additional education, health 
and library facilities, and the associated monitoring costs which would be incurred 
by the community as a result of the development; contrary to Policies CS10 and 
CS11 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012; and the adopted 
Supplementary Planning Documents “Contributions to Education”, "Contributions 
to Health Facilities", “Contributions to Libraries” and "Planning Obligations". 

 
1.   MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
The Mayor's London Plan: July 2011 
 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012 
 
Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012 
 
Barnet’s emerging Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core 
Strategy and Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents 
(DPD).  
 
Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5, CS10, CS15. 
 
The Development Management Policies document provides the borough wide 
planning policies that implement the Core Strategy. These policies are used for day-
to-day decision making. 
 
Relevant Development Management Policies: DM01, DM02, DM03, DM08, DM14 
and DM17. 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
 
Site Address: 14 Dollis Avenue London N3 1TX 
Application Number: C16371/05 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Refuse 
Decision Date: 02/01/2007 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 
Appeal Decision Date:   02/01/2007 
Proposal: Demolition of existing house, garages and ancillary buildings and 

construction of a 3-storey building (with rooms in roofspace) to 
provide 9 self-contained flats. Basement parking for 12 cars. 

Case Officer: Karina Sissman 

  
Site Address: 14 Dollis Avenue London N3 1TX 
Application Number: C16371C/07 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Refuse 
Decision Date: 15/09/2008 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 
Appeal Decision Date:   15/09/2008 

25



Proposal: Demolition of existing house and erection of a three storey building 
with basement car parking comprising of 5 self-contained flats and 
construction of swimming pool at end of garden. 

Case Officer: Karina Sissman 

  
Site Address: 14 Dollis Avenue London N3 1TX 
Application Number: C16371A/06 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Refuse 
Decision Date: 02/01/2007 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 
Appeal Decision Date:   02/01/2007 
Proposal: Demolition of existing house, garages and ancillary buildings and 

construction of a three-storey building (with rooms in roofspace) to 
provide 7no. self-contained flats. Basement parking for 12 cars. 
(Amended description) 

Case Officer: Karina Sissman 

  
Site Address: 14 Dollis Avenue London N3 1TX 
Application Number: C16371B/06 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Refuse 
Decision Date: 13/02/2007 
Appeal Decision: Withdrawn 
Appeal Decision Date:   13/02/2007 
Proposal: Demolition of existing house, garages and ancillary buildings and 

construction of a three-storey building (with rooms in roofspace) to 
provide 6No. self-contained flats. Basement parking for 12 cars. 

Case Officer: Karina Sissman 

  
Site Address: 14 Dollis Avenue, London, N3 1TX 
Application Number: F/01970/11 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 13/07/2011 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 2no detached dwellings 

with integral garages, basement accommodation, and rooms in 
roofspace. Erection of ancillary 2no single storey outbuildings to 
accommodate private swimming pools. Associated landscape 
alterations at front and rear garden, and amenity space. 

Case Officer: David Campbell 

  
Site Address: 14 Dollis Avenue, London, N3 1TX 
Application Number: F/02194/12 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Not yet decided 
Decision Date: Not yet decided 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a detached 2-Storey 

building with rooms in the roofspace and basement including 
basement parking and access ramp to provide 6 no. 2 bed flats. Single 
storey detached poolhouse in rear garden. 

Case Officer: David Campbell 

  
Site Address: 14 DOLLIS AVENUE, LONDON, N3 1TX 
Application Number: F/00793/08 

26



Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 30/07/2008 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Erection of two dwelling houses with internal garages. 
Case Officer: Alissa Fawcett 

  
Consultations and Views Expressed: 
 
Neighbours Consulted: 56 Replies: 19 
Neighbours Wishing To Speak 2   
 
The objections raised may be summarised as follows: 
 

• Increase in traffic. 

• Parking and access. 

• Out of character. 

• Out of scale. 

• Flats have been refused before. 

• The street's character is based on large houses. 

• Increase pollution following increase in gas heating. 

• Reduction in neighbouring property values. 

• The size of the building is out of scale. 

• Increase in traffic. 

• Overdevelopment. 

• Disruption during building works. 

• Harm to trees. 

• Would be harmful when the development at Dukes House is considered. 

• Pool house is harmful and would increase activity. 

• Increase in noise and disturbance. 

• Loss of light. 

• Loss of privacy. 

• Residential amenity. 

• The previous Inspector stated that flats were not characteristic of the road, which 
under emerging council policy, road which are not characterised by flats should 
be refused. 

• The council has approved two houses on the site therefore consider it 
appropriate for houses. 

• The design, siting, appearance, scale, mass, bulk, height is not appropriate. 

• The proposal does not comply with policy. 

• This will act as a precedent for future applications. 

• The proposals have been misrepresented. 
 
A petition with 35 signatures has also been received. 
 
Date of Site Notice: 21 June 2012 
 
Two rounds of public consultation were carried out. A second letter of 
consultation was sent to all original consultees and objectors following receipt 

27



of amendments to the originally proposed scheme. The application was 
defered from the November West Area Planning Sub-committee to enable an 
objector to speak. 
 
2. PLANNING APPRAISAL 
 
Site Description and Surroundings:  
 
The site contains a large detached house in a residential street in the Finchley 
Church End ward, outside of any of the borough's conservation areas. The site is 
bounded by a detached two storey development comprising of nine flats to the north 
and a two storey detached house to the south. Both of these properties have 
accommodation in the roof. To the rear, the site is bounded by the rear gardens of 
properties in Priory Close and Rathgar Close.  
 
Proposal:  
 
The application seeks consent for the demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 
a detached 2-Storey building with rooms in the roofspace and basement including 
basement parking and access ramp to provide 6 no. 2 bed flats and a single storey 
detached poolhouse in the rear garden. 
 
The application has been amended since first being submitted. The footprint and 
massing of the building has been reduced, most rear balconies and terraces have 
been removed and design changes to the rest of the elevations have been made 
following advice from offficers.  
 
The site benefits from an extant planning permission for the construction of two 
detached houses. A number of other applications have been refused and dismissed 
at appeal - details of which are contained in the planning history above as as an 
appendix to this report.   
 
 
Planning Considerations:  
 
The Borough has an attractive and high quality environment that the Council wishes 
to protect and enhance. It is therefore considered necessary to carefully assess both 
the design and form of new development to ensure that it is compatible with the 
established character of an area that is defined by the type and size of dwellings, the 
layout, intensity, and relationship with one another and their surroundings. Proposals 
involving the redevelopment of sites in residential localities are required to reflect the 
particular character of the street in which the site is located and the scale and 
proportion of the houses. 
 
The main issues are considered to be:  
2. Policy Context including NPPF (National Planning Policy Framework) 
3. The principle of development; 
4. Whether harm would be caused to the character and appearance of the area and 

street scene;  
5. The living conditions of future residents within the development having regard to 

28



the provision of amenity space; 
6. The living conditions of existing & future residents within neighbouring properties 

having regard to overlooking, privacy and outlook; 
7. Trees & Landscaping; 
8. Parking, Access and Vehicle Movements; 
9. Whether the proposal would result in the community incurring extra educational 

costs that should be met by the developer; 
10. Whether the proposal would increase pressures on the services provided by 

libraries incurring additional costs that should be met by the developer; 
11. Whether the proposal would increase the demand for health care facilities 

incurring extra costs that should be met by the developer. 
 
Policy Context: 
 
The NPPF has been adopted since the previous application. The relevant sections 
are as follows: 
 
Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that “Housing applications should be considered in 
the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development”. 
 
The government consider that “there are three dimensions to sustainable 
development: economic, social and environmental. These dimensions give rise to 
the need for the planning system to perform a number of roles:  

• an economic role – N by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type 
is available in the right places and at the right time to support growth 
and innovation 

• a social role – N by providing the supply of housing required to meet 
the needs of present and future generations; and by creating a high 
quality built environment 

• an environmental role – contributing to protecting and enhancing our 
natural, built and historic environment N ” 

 
In paragraph 21, the government encourages the effective use of land by reusing 
land that has been previously developed (brownfield land). 
 
Paragraph 56 states “the Government attaches great importance to the design of the 
built environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places 
better for people”. 
 
The Principle of Development 
 
In 2007, an appeal Inspector dealing with an application for a flatted development 
stated: 'Dollis Avenue is an attractive tree-lined road in a well-established residential 
area, consisting of mainly of two or sometimes three storey, medium to large size 
houses in mature gardens. Although there is often no great distance between the 
houses, the density of the frontage is off set by the depth and size of both front and 
rear gardens and the vegetation, in particular the trees around them. There are four 
purpose-built blocks of flats in the road but, given they represent a small proportion 
of the number of properties in the road, they cannot be said to be characteristic of 

29



Dollis Avenue'. 
 
In 2008, another appeal Inspector dealing with an application for a flatted 
development stated: 'Making more effective use of land is a key principle of 
government policy, to which the appellant makes extensive reference, and I have 
come to the view that Dollis Avenue has not reached the point where new 
apartment development should, as matter of principle, be resisted.' 
 
The Council's Local Plan which has been adopted states in policy DM01 part i: 'Loss 
of houses in roads characterised by houses will not normally be appropriate'. 
 
It is considered that although there are more houses than flats on Dollis Road, two of 
them, Georgian Court and Dukes House are in close proximity to the application site. 
As such it is not considered that an application on this part of Dollis Avenue could be 
refused on flats being out of character. The 2008 appeal decision and comments 
from the Inspector are material planning consideration. The Local Plan policy are 
considered in line with the 2007 and 2008 appeal Inspectors' comments and as a 
result it is not considered that the application could be refused on these grounds 
alone. 
 
Proposed siting, character and appearance: 
 
The proposed footprint would respect the character and pattern of buildings in this 
part of Dollis Avenue and allow for sufficient gaps in between the site and 
surrounding buildings. The front building line would align with the neighbouring 
property 12 Dollis Avenue but would be set further away from the boundary than 
previous consented houses scheme and will be 3m from the boundary. The block will 
be 5.6m from the other neighbouring flats at Georgian Court, a greater separation 
than the approved scheme, and 2.5m further into the garden. It is considered than 
the bulk and mass of the flatted scheme is comparable to the two house scheme, 
except without the gap in between. 
 
In light of this increase in bulk, mass and scale, it is considered that the proposed 
footprint would relate to surrounding dwellings in position and form, whilst also 
considering that the existing building is of a comparable with to the current 
proposals. The height of the block would also be the same as the consent house 
scheme. It is acknowledged that the houses would project into the garden further 
than the approved houses, it is not considered that this would be harmful to 
neighbours given the inset of the building from both boundaries. Overall, it is 
considered that the size, height, mass and appearance of the building would be 
harmonious with and not over dominate the surrounding scale or adversely affect the 
character of the locality.The application has been amended since it was first 
submitted, which reduces the width and projection of the building. There have also 
been some altertations to the roof which are considered to enhance the scheme at 
the front of the property. 
 
The pool house is also considered to be acceptable, and is considered to be an 
improvement from the consented scheme, given that it is further away from the trees 
and incorporates a green roof. 
 

30



The proposed design and appearance of the scheme is considered to be acceptable 
within an area with a wide variety of differing designs. 
 
Amenity of future occupiers: 
 
All proposed units would provide adequate internal space and therefore comply with 
policy DM02 of the London Plan as well as the Policy 3.5 (table 3.3) of the London 
Plan July 2011. The stacking of flats/rooms is generally acceptable.  
 
The proposed development also provides sufficient amounts of usable outdoor 
space for the enjoyment of future occupiers. The current scheme proposes a 
communal garden to the rear, a pool situated in the rear garden and additional 
private space in the form of enclosed balconies and terraces which is in line with 
policy. The communal garden would provide an acceptable quality of outdoor 
amenity space. A detailed landscaping with details of planting types and heights are 
to be required by condition. 
 
The proposed intensification of use from 1 unit to six is not expected to result in a 
detrimental loss of amenity for occupiers of this part of Dollis Avenue or future 
occupiers of the adjacent neighbouring dwellings.  
 
When assessed against the London Plan's density matrix, the scheme provides 29 
units per hectare and 116 habitable rooms per hectare, in an area where 35-65 units 
per hectare and 150-250 habitable rooms per hectare would be acceptable. The 
scheme is therefore less dense than the London Plan policies normally recommend 
and as such there are no objections on the proposed density. It is considered that as 
there is one property on the property on site at the moment, the scheme could not be 
refused on the shortfall in the number of units, when compared to the requirenments 
of the density matrix on this occasion. 
 
Amenity of existing/future neighbouring occupiers: 
 
One of the Councils key objectives is to improve the quality of life for people living in 
the Borough and therefore development that results in unacceptable harm to 
neighbours amenity is unlikely to be supported. Good neighborliness is a yardstick 
against which proposals can be measured.  
 
Local Plan Policy DM01 seeks amongst other things, to ensure adequate outlook for 
occupiers adjoining new development, and that new residential developments should 
provide and preserve adequate residential amenity, however the policies, and the 
preamble in the preceding paragraphs, do not offer any guidance for assessment. It 
is therefore necessary for a judgement to be made by the decision maker with regard 
to this issue in each case. 
 
It is considered given the increased distance (compared to the two house scheme) 
between the proposed building and Georgian Court & 12 Dollis Avenue, that it would 
not detract from the amenities of adjoining occupiers in terms of the loss of light, 
outlook or privacy. There are windows on both side elevations but all are to be 
conditions to be obscure glazes. The intensification of use and associated comings 
and goings are not considered to warrant refusal for the application. 

31



It is also considered that due to the nature of the design of the balconies, which are 
inset within the main building, the significant natural screening in neighbouring 
gardens, and the distances between neighbouring properties there would not be any 
significant overlooking into neighbouring properties.  Other balconies which were 
considered to give rise to overlooking have been removed from the scheme. 
 
Trees & Landscaping: 
 
The trees in this road are an important part of the character of the street and their 
retention is critical to any development. The trees on the street also offer a relief from 
the buildings and act as a screen for the buildings. 
 
The site and surrounding sites has a number of trees however, none are protected 
by Tree Preservation Orders. The proposed scheme has taken account of the trees 
and be in accordance with standards. whilst some trees will be removed to 
accommodate the development, other trees are to be retained and enhanced with 
further planting. Landscaping conditions have been attached to ensure that full 
details follow the application. 
 
Parking, Access and Vehicle Movements: 
 
A total of 8 car parking spaces (including two disabled car parking space) are being 
provided on a site with a PTAL score of 3. The parking provision is in accordance 
with the Parking Standards set out in the Local Plan 2012 and there are no highways 
objections. The access to the site is also considered to be acceptable. 
 

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010: 
 
The contributions listed in the above recommendation are necessary, directly 
relevant and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development, in 
accordance with Regulation 122 of The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 
2010. 
 
Government Circular 05/05 and the Council’s adopted SPD for section 106 related 
planning obligations is applicable for this site in respect of the following areas: 
 
The education, library services, health facilities & monitoring fee of 5% contributions 
have been adjusted following the previously approved application which was secured 
by Section 106 Agreement.  
 

Adopted policy indicates that the Council will seek to enter into planning obligations 
in conjunction with new developments to secure the provision of community and 
religious facilities, health and social care facilities and library facilities where a 
residential development creates a need for school places contributions will be 
secured for such purposes via planning obligations. 
 
The purpose of planning obligations is to make acceptable development which would 
otherwise be unacceptable in planning terms. Circular 05/2005 supports the use of 
planning obligations to secure contributions towards community infrastructure to 
mitigate the impacts of new development, provided that they are directly related to 

32



the development proposal, the need for them arises from its implementation, and 
they are related in scale and kind. 
 
Para. B5 of the Circular sets out five policy tests that must be met by the LPA when 
seeking planning obligations. In addition, Regulation 122 of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations, which came into force on 6 April 2010, makes it 
unlawful for a planning obligation to be taken into account in determining a planning 
application if it does not meet the three tests set out in Regulation 122. These 
statutory tests are based upon three of the five policy tests in Circular 5/2005 at 
paragraph B5 (tests (ii), (iii) and (iv).  
The recovery of costs for the monitoring of planning obligations is set out in Section 
8 (para’s 8.3 & 8.4) of the Planning Obligations SPD.    
 
Education needs generated by the development: 
 
Circular 05/2005 supports the use of planning obligations to secure contributions 
towards educational facilities, provided that they are directly related to the 
development proposal, the need for them arises from its implementation, and they 
are related in scale and kind. 
 
The proposal would provide 5 additional residential units that are considered would 
generate an increased demand for educational facilities in the area. The calculation 
of additional demand (SPD para’s 4.6-4.14), existing facilities and capacity (SPD 
para’s 5.5-5.12), method of calculating the required contribution (SPD para’s 3.1-
3.15 and 4.1-4.5), and use of the contributions (SPD para’s 5.13-5.14) are set out in 
the Council’s SPD “Contributions to Education” adopted in 2008.  
 
It is considered that a financial contribution towards future education facilities is 
justified in terms of Circular 05/2005 and that a suitably worded legal agreement / 
undertaking could secure this.  
 
To accord with policy and the SPD the proposed scheme of 7 residential units (net 
increase of 2x 3 bedroom units) would require a contribution of £4,005 plus a 
monitoring fee of 5%. 
 
Contributions to library services: 
 
The increase in population resulting from development is expected to place serious 
pressures on libraries, which are already required to meet all the needs of Barnet’s 
diverse community. Developer contributions are therefore necessary to ensure 
service provision mitigates the impact of their development activity.  
 
The adopted SPD “Contributions to Library Services” sets out the Council’s 
expectations for developers contributions to the provision and delivery of a 
comprehensive and efficient library service, with the aim of opening up the world of 
learning to the whole community using all media to support peoples educational, 
cultural and information needs. The SPD provides the calculation of additional 
demand (para’s 4.10-4.12), existing facilities and capacity (para’s 1.1-1.4 & 2.5), 
method of calculation (para’s 2.4 & 3.1-3.11), and use of funds (para’s 5.1-5.7).   
 

33



It is considered that a financial contribution towards library services is justified in 
terms of Circular 05/2005 and that a suitably worded legal agreement / undertaking 
could secure this. To accord with policy and the SPD the proposed scheme would 
require a contribution of £590 plus a monitoring fee of 5%. 
  
Contributions to Health facilities: 
 
The proposal would provide 5 additional residential units that are considered would 
generate an increased demand for health facilities in the area. The calculation of 
additional demand / method of calculating the required contribution (SPD para’s 6.1-
6.4), existing facilities and capacity (SPD para’s 5.7-5.18), and use of the 
contributions (SPD para’s 8.1-8.4) are set out in the Council’s SPD “Contributions to 
Health” adopted in July 2009.  
 
It is considered that a financial contribution towards future health care facilities is 
justified in terms of Circular 05/2005 and that a suitably worded legal agreement / 
undertaking could secure this. To accord with policy and the SPD the proposed 
scheme would require a contribution of £5,088 and a monitoring fee of 5%. 
 
The education, library services, health facilities & monitoring fee of 5% contributions 
will be secured by unilateral undertaking.  
 
3. COMMENTS ON GROUNDS OF OBJECTIONS 
 
The grounds of objection have been addressed below: 
 

• Increase in traffic - It is not considered that the council could demonstrate that 
any increases in traffic would be harmful to Dollis Avenue. 

• Parking and access - The proposed number of parking spaces and the access to 
the development is considered to be acceptable. No objections have been raised 
by the council's Traffic and Development Team. 

• Out of character - It is not considered that the development is out of character 
with the area as has been explained above. 

• Out of scale - It is considered that the development is acceptable in terms of 
mass, scale and bulk. There are no objections on these grounds. 

• Flats have been refused before - It is considered for the reasons given in the 
main report that the application overcomes the previous reasons for refusal and 
the previous Inspector's comments. 

• The street's character is based on large houses - There are other examples of 
flats on Dollis Avenue and as such it is not considered that flats are out of 
character as a matter of principle. 

• Increase pollution following increase in gas heating - It is not considered that the 
increase in pollution following increase in gas heating is a reason to refuse 
consent. 

• Reduction in neighbouring property values - This is not a material planning 
consideration. 

• The size of the building is out of scale - It is considered that the development is 
acceptable in terms of mass, scale and bulk. There are no objections on these 
grounds. 

34



• Overdevelopment - It is considered that the proposals are acceptable and do not 
represent overdevelopment of the site. The scheme fall short of the advice given 
in the London Plan's density matrix. 

• Disruption during building works - This is not a material planning consideration. 

• Harm to trees - It is considered that there will not be harm to the trees on site. 

• Would be harmful when the development at Dukes House is considered - The 
application must be considered on its own merits. 

• Pool house is harmful and would increase activity - It is not considered that the 
pool house would give rise to significant increases in noise and disturbance and 
would not be harmful to neighbouring amenity. 

• Increase in noise and disturbance - It is not considered that the application would 
give rise to significant increases in noise and disturbance. 

• Loss of light - It is considered that there will be be no loss of light as a result of 
the application. 

• Loss of privacy - It is considered that subject to the conditions on obscure glazing 
and balcony screens, there will be be no loss of privacy. 

• Residential amenity - It is considered that the proposed scheme will not cause 
harm to the amenities of neighbouring properties as has been explained in the 
main report. 

• The previous Inspector stated that flats were not characteristic of the road, which 
under emerging council policy, road which are not characterised by flats should 
be refused - This has been addressed in the main report. There are other 
examples of flats in Dollis Avenue. 

• The council has approved two houses on the site therefore consider it 
appropriate for houses - This does not mean that the site is inappropreate for any 
other development. 

• The design, siting, appearance, scale, mass, bulk, height is not appropriate - 
These have all been assessed in the main report and found to be acceptable. 

• The proposal does not comply with policy - The proposal has been assessed in 
line with policy and is therefore considered to be acceptable. 

• This will act as a precedent for future applications - Future application will be 
determined on their own merits. 

• The proposals have been misrepresented - It is considered that the information 
submitted is acceptable and as decision can be made on their basis. 

 
4. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
The proposals do not conflict with either Barnet Council's Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in our Equality Scheme and supports the council in meeting its 
statutory equality responsibilities. 
 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
Having taken all material considerations into account, it is considered that subject to 
compliance with the attached conditions, the proposal would comply with the 
Council's policies and guidelines and would not cause unacceptable harm to the 
area, the existing building or the amenities of any neighbouring property. The 
proposals are acceptable on highway grounds. The proposed development includes 
provision for appropriate contributions in accordance with Regulation 122 of the 

35



Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 
 
It is considered that the development is acceptable and therefore the application is 
recommended for APPROVAL. 

36



 
 
SITE LOCATION PLAN: 14 Dollis Avenue, London, N3 1TX 
 
REFERENCE:  F/02194/12 
 
 
 

   

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database right 2012. 
All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number LA100017674.  
 
 
 

37



38

This page is intentionally left blank



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



 
 
 
LOCATION: 33 Norrice Lea, London, N2 0RD 
REFERENCE: F/03038/12 Received: 06 August 2012 
  Accepted: 14 August 2012 
WARD(S): Garden Suburb Expiry: 09 October 2012 
  Final Revisions:  
APPLICANT: Mr Samuels 
PROPOSAL: Creation of new basement level with associated lightwell and 

4no ventilation grilles. 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approve Subject to Conditions 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans:  
Location Plan / Block Plan; 1- Existing Ground Floor Plan; 2A- Proposed Ground 
Floor Plan; 3A- Basement Plan (Proposed); 4- Rear Elevation (Existing and 
Proposed); D2- Basement Plan (Structure Above: Stage 1 and 2); D3- Basement 
Plan (Structure Below: Stages 2 and 3); D4- Basment Plan (Structure Below: 
Pool- Stage 4); D5- Drainage Detail; Design and Access Statement; Martin 
Redston Associates- Proposed Construction Method Statement and Sequence 
of Works; Letter from Martin Redsron Associates dated 24th October 2012 
confirming the basement will be designed to BS8102 or other relevant water 
retaining structure Code of Practice; Email from applicant (Marc Samuels) dated 
24th October 2012 confirming (i) any land drains uncovered during construction 
will be maintained and protected, (ii) sheet piling will be used to control water 
ingress, (iii) temporary land drainage solutions will be put in place and 
maintained throughout construction, (iv) a permanent land drainage for post 
construction will be in stalled and maintained. 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 
permission.  
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

3 Before the development hereby permitted commences, details of the proposed 
ventilation grilles at a scale of 1:20 shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such details as approved.  
Reason: 
To safeguard the visual amenities of the locality. 

4 All work comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried out 
before the end of the first planting and seeding season following occupation of 
any part of the buildings or completion of the development, whichever is sooner, 
or commencement of the use. 
Reason: 
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development. 

5 Any shrubs to be planted as part of the approved landscaping scheme which are 
removed, die, become severely damaged or diseased within five years of the 
completion of development shall be replaced with trees or shrubs of appropriate 
size and species in the next planting season. 
Reason: 

AGENDA ITEM 10

51



To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development. 
6 No construction work resulting from the planning permission shall be carried out 

on the premises at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays, before 8.00 
am or after 1.00 pm on Saturdays, or before 8.00 am or after 6.00pm on other 
days.  
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of adjoining residential properties. 

7 Provisions shall be made within the site to ensure that all vehicles associated 
with the construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed 
and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway.  
 
Reason: 
To ensure that the development does not cause danger and inconvenience to 
users of the adjoining pavement and highway. 

8 No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The 
Statement shall provide for – access to the site; the parking of vehicles for site 
operatives and visitors; hours of construction, including deliveries, loading and 
unloading of plant and materials; the storage of plant and materials used in the 
construction of the development; the erection of any means of temporary 
enclosure or security hoarding and measures to prevent mud and debris being 
carried on to the public highway. Throughout the construction period the detailed 
measures contained within the approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to. 
Reason:   
In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy DM17 of the London 
Borough of Barnet's Local Plan. 

9 All land drains on site are to be maintained and the drainage system designed 
by a qualified engineer.  
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of adjoining residential properties. 

10 Prior to any works starting on site, further information on ground conditions and 
ground water levels should be submitted to establish how the soil will be 
stabilised during excavation and how ground water will be prevented from 
potentially entering the excavation and washing out soil to surrounding 
areas.Those details shall be submitted and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority before any works start on site.  
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of adjoining residential properties. 

INFORMATIVE(S): 
1 The reasons for this grant of planning permission or other planning related 

decision are as follows: - 
i)  The proposed development accords with strategic planning guidance and 
policies as set out in The Mayor's London Plan: July 2011 and Barnet Local Plan 
(2010). 
In particular the following policies are relevant: 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: 

52



Relevant policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5, CS7 
 
Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: 
Relevant Policies: DM01, DM02, DM06, DM17 
 
ii)  The proposal is acceptable for the following reason(s): - 
Having taken all material considerations into account, the proposed extension 
would not detrimentally impact on the qualities of this building and protect the 
character of this part of the Hampstead Garden Suburb Conservation Area or 
the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. The design of the alteration is such that, 
as conditioned, it preserves the character and appearance of the individual 
property, street scene, conservation area, and area of special character. The 
construction of the basement would have an acceptable on the area and the 
amenity of neighbouring occupiers subject to planning conditions. 

2 The Mayor of London introduced a Community Infrastructure Levy on 1st April 
2012 setting a rate of £35 per sqm on all 'chargeable development' in Barnet. 
Your planning application has been assessed to require a charge of £7875. 

This will be recorded to the register of Local Land Charges as a legal charge 
upon your site should you commence development.  This Mayoral CIL charge 
will be passed across to Transport for London to support Crossrail, London's 
highest infrastructure priority.  

If Affordable Housing Relief or Charitable Relief applies to your development 
then this may reduce the final amount you are required to pay; such relief must 
be applied for prior to commencement of development using the 'Claiming 
Exemption or Relief' form available from the Planning Portal website: 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil  

You will be sent a 'Liability Notice' that will provide full details of the charge and 
to whom it has been apportioned for payment. If you wish to identify named 
parties other than the applicant for this permission as the liable party for paying 
this levy, please submit to the Council an 'Assumption of Liability' notice, this is 
also available from the Planning Portal website.  

The Community Infrastructure Levy becomes payable upon commencement of 
development. You are required to submit a 'Notice of Commencement' to the 
Council's CIL Team prior to commencing on site, and failure to provide such 
information at the due date will incur both surcharges and penalty interest. There 
are various other charges and surcharges that may apply if you fail to meet 
statutory requirements, such requirements will all be set out in the Liability 
Notice you will receive.  

If you fail to receive a 'Liability Notice' from the Council within 1 month of this 
grant of planning permission, please contact us: cil@barnet.gov.uk 

 
 1.   MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 

The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government 

53



advice and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning 
Authorities must determine applications in accordance with the statutory 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, and that the 
planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person against 
another.  

The ‘National Planning Policy Framework’ (NPPF) was published on 27 March 2012. 
This is a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning system less 
complex and more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 

The London Plan is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan. 

The NPPF states that "good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places 
better for people”. It retains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
This applies unless any adverse impacts of a development would "significantly and 
demonstrably" outweigh the benefits. 

The Mayor's London Plan (July 2011): 

The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets 
out a fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for 
the development of the capital to 2031. It forms part of the development plan for 
Greater London.  

The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to 
ensure that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of 
life. 

Local Plan Core Strategy (September 2012): 

Barnet’s Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core Strategy 
and Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents (DPD). The 
Core Strategy was adopted by the Council on 11 September 2012 and replaces the 
2006 Unitary Development Plan. 

Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 

Local Plan Development Management Policies (September 2012): 

The Development Management Policies document provides the borough wide 
planning policies that implement the Core Strategy. These policies are used for day-
to-day decision making. The Development Management Policies DPD was adopted 
by the Council on 11 September 2012 and replaces the 2006 Unitary Development 
Plan. 

Relevant Development Management Policies: DM01, DM02, DM06, DM17 

Adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents 

The Council Guide ‘Extension to Houses’ was approved by the Planning and 
Environment Committee (The Local Planning Authority) on March 2010. This leaflet 
in the form of a supplementary planning guidance (SPG) sets out information for 
applicants to help them design an extension to their property which would receive 

54



favourable consideration by the Local Planning Authority and was the subject of 
separate public consultation. 

Included advice states that large areas of Barnet are characterised by relatively low 
density suburban housing with an attractive mixture of terrace, semi detached and 
detached houses. The council is committed to protecting, and where possible 
enhancing the character of the borough’s residential areas and retaining an attractive 
street scene. 

In respect to amenity, the extension should not be overbearing or unduly obtrusive 
and care should be taken to ensure that they do not result in harmful loss of outlook 
and be overbearing or cause an increased sense of enclosure to adjoining 
properties. 

The basic principles the Local Authority has adopted in respect to different types 
developments are that they should not unduly reduce light or outlook from 
neighbouring windows to habitable rooms, overshadow or create an unacceptable 
sense of enclosure to neighbouring gardens. They should not look out of place, 
overbearing or bulky from surrounding areas. 

The Council has also adopted (June 2007), following public consultation, a 
Supplementary Planning Document “Sustainable Design and Construction”. The 
SPD provides detailed guidance that supplements policies in the Unitary 
Development Plan, and sets out how sustainable development will be delivered in 
Barnet. Part 6 of the SPD relates to generic environmental requirements to ensure 
that new development within Barnet meets sufficiently high environmental and 
design standards.  

The Council Guide ‘Hampstead Garden Suburb Conservation Area Design 
Guidance’ as part of the Hampstead Garden Suburb Character Appraisals was 
approved by the Planning and Environment Committee (The Local Planning 
Authority) in October 2010. This leaflet in the form of a supplementary planning 
guidance (SPG) sets out information for applicants on repairs, alterations and 
extensions to properties and works to trees and gardens. It has been produced 
jointly by the Hampstead Garden Suburb Trust and Barnet Council. This leaflet was 
the subject of separate public consultation. 

 
Relevant Planning History: 
 
Planning applications picked up in spatial search 
Site Address: 33 Norrice Lea London N2 0RD 
Application Number: C07735H/07 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 03/03/2008 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Part single, part two-storey rear extension. 
Case Officer: Laura Knight 

  
Site Address: 33 Norrice Lea LONDON N2 
Application Number: C07735C 
Application Type: Full Application 

55



Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 18/04/1989 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension and alteration to side elevation 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 33 Norrice Lea LONDON N2 
Application Number: C07735B 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 13/08/1987 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Alterations to side elevation 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 33 Norrice Lea LONDON N2 
Application Number: C07735E 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 20/04/1993 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Single and two storey rear extensions 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 33 Norrice Lea LONDON N2 
Application Number: C07735D 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 25/02/1992 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 33 Norrice Lea N2 
Application Number: C07735 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 31/03/1982 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: single storey rear extension. 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 33 Norrice Lea N2 
Application Number: C07735A 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve 
Decision Date: 30/09/1982 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension - details of facing materials pursuant to 

condition 2 of planning permission ref. C.7735 dated 31.3.82 
Case Officer:  

 
 

56



Consultations and Views Expressed: 
Neighbours Consulted: 10 Replies:  5    
Neighbours Wishing To Speak 0     
 
The objections raised may be summarised as follows: 

• Concerns about overflow of water caused by proposed development 

• Hydrological problems 

• Flooding 

• Size of ventilation grilles to large and out of character 

• Light spillage as a result of proposed lightwells 

• Concerns the excavations will damage the existing boundary hedges 

• Overdevelopment of the property 

• Impact on local wildlife 

• Subsidence 

• Basement too large contravening Design Guidance 

• Nuisance 

• Noise and disturbance 
 
Internal /Other Consultations: 

• Urban and Design and Heritage- No objection 

• Hampstead Garden Suburb Conservation Area Advisory Committee- Objection: 
lightwells on the north boundary a source of light pollution for the neighbours, 
need to be reconsidered 

 
Date of Site Notice: 23 August 2012 
 
2. PLANNING APPRAISAL 
 
Site Description and Surroundings: 
 
The application site is located on the eastern side of Norrice Lea within Area 13: 
Holne Chase and Norrice Lea, of the Hampstead Garden Suburb Conservation Area. 
The existing building on site is a linked, two-storey residential dwelling house with 
rooms in the roofspace. It has been designated as a locally listed following the 
adoption of the Hampstead Garden Suburb Character Appraisal in 2010.  
 
The Conservation Area Character Appraisal notes; "The Norrice Lea Synagogue and 
its hall and classroom block dominate the entrance to Norrice Lea from Lyttleton 
Road. On the west side fo the road a group of houses by Caspari have distinctive 
metal windows, shallow roof and show modernist influences in their horizontal lines. 
No 26 has an original door case and is perhaps the most successful of this group. At 
the junction with Linden lea, the gentle curve is marked by a sequence of Neo-
Georgian houses NOs. 33-43 by Butler. These are the most distinguished houses in 
the road, showing Butler's refined Luttyens-influenced style." 
 
Proposal: 
 
This application seeks consent for the creation of a new basement level with 
associated internal lightwell and 4no. ventilation grilles, all measuring 2m width by 

57



1m. 
The new basement is proposed to project beyond the footprint of the house into the 
garden. 
 
Planning Considerations: 
 
The main issue in this case is whether or not the alterations would be visually 
obtrusive forms of development which would detract from the character and 
appearance of the street scene and this part of the Hampstead Garden Suburb 
Conservation Area and have an adverse and visually obtrusive impact upon the 
amenity of the occupiers of the neighbouring property. 
 
The supplementary planning guidance for the Suburb is the Hampstead Garden 
Suburb Design Guidance which has been the subject of public consultation and 
Local Planning Authority approval. The guidance says: 
 
Hampstead Garden Suburb is one of the best examples of town planning and 
domestic architecture on a large neighbourhood or community scale which Britain 
has produced in the last century. The value of the Suburb has been recognised by its 
inclusion in the Greater London Development Plan, and subsequently in the Unitary 
Development Plan, as an “Area of Special Character of Metropolitan Importance”. 
The Secretary of State for the Environment endorsed the importance of the Suburb 
by approving an Article 4 Direction covering the whole area. The Borough of Barnet 
designated the Suburb as a Conservation Area in 1968 and continues to bring 
forward measures which seek to preserve or enhance the character or appearance 
of the Conservation Area. 
 
The ethos of the original founder was maintained in that the whole area was 
designed as a complete composition. The Garden City concept was in this matter 
continued and the architects endeavoured to fulfil the criteria of using the best of 
architectural design and materials of that time. This point is emphasised by the 
various style of building, both houses and flats, in this part of the Suburb which is a 
‘who’s who’ of the best architects of the period and consequently, a history of 
domestic architecture of the period of 1900 – 1939. 
 
The choice of individual design elements was carefully made, reflecting the 
architectural period of the particular building. Each property was designed as a 
complete composition and design elements, such as windows, were selected 
appropriate to the property. The Hampstead Garden Suburb, throughout, has 
continuity in design of doors and windows with strong linking features, giving the 
development an architectural form and harmony. It is considered that a disruption of 
this harmony would be clearly detrimental to the special character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. The front of the properties being considered of equal 
importance as the rear elevation, by the original architects, forms an integral part of 
the whole concept. 
 
Council’s policies and guidelines in respect of alterations to residential properties 
seek to ensure that they respect the scale, character and design of any building on 
which they are to be placed and are compatible with the character of the locality. 
Alterations will not be permitted if they do not have regard to the amenities enjoyed 

58



by neighbours. 
 
Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012 states that 
all development should represent high quality design and should be designed to 
allow for adequate daylight, sunlight, privacy and outlook for adjoining occupiers.  
 
Policy DM02 of the Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012 states that 
where appropriate, all development will be expected to demonstrate compliance with 
national and Londonwide standards support by the guidance set out in the council's 
Supplementary Planning Documents. 
 
Policy DM06 of the Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012 states that 
development proposals must preserve or enhance the character and appearance of 
16 Conservation Areas in Barnet.  
 
The provision of new basement accommodation is a relatively recent phenomenon in 
the Hampstead Garden Suburb Conservation Area. The adopted Design Guidance 
(2010) notes that; "Both Barnet Council and the Trust will carefully control all external 
changes associated with basement development to protect the character and 
appearance of the Suburb and the setting of individual houses and groups". In the 
case of this application it is considered that the proposed basement is acceptable as 
it meets a number of stipulations set out in the Design Guidance, including; "The 
above ground evidence of a basement shoud be as discreet as possible so as to 
have little impact on the setting of the house or garden", the external manifestations 
of the basement proposed at the application site are four modest lightwells.  
 
The proposed lightwells to the rear and sides are proposed be covered with a metal 
grille flush with the ground level.  None of the proposed lightwells are proposed to be 
located over the threshold of any doors, in line with the adopted Hampstead Garden 
Suburb Conservation Area Design Guidance (2010) which stipulates that "Structural 
glass lightwells or grilles should not be located at the threshold of doorways from the 
house to garden". As such, the proposed lightwells are not considered to harm the 
setting of the host building. The proposed lightwells are consistent with other 
lightwells approved in the conservation area. Although basements may not always 
be appropriate within the conservation area, it is considered acceptable in this 
particular case, due to the size and footprint of the proposed excavation, location of 
surrounding trees and minimal external alterations to the building. The external 
alterations would not be visible from the street, and their number and size is 
considered to be restrained, and therefore acceptable.  
 
Other stipulations of basement accommodation set out in the adopted Design 
Guidance include; "Basements should generally be limited to the footprint of the 
house. In larger houses with extensive gardens it may be possible to extend under 
part of the rear garden." It is also noted that; "lightwells or skylights must be located 
away from the property boundary to enable a planted boundary to be maintained." 
 
In the case of this application it is noted that the proposed basement projects beyond 
the rear footprint of the property into the rear garden by 7.5m. It is considered that 
due to the size of the garden, the existing hardstanding and other landscaping 
features this projection will not detrimentally harm the character of the existing 

59



property, the amenities of neighbouring occupiers will be maintained and there will 
be no harm caused to the wider conservation area. 
 
The position of the basement in relation to neighbouring trees is considered 
acceptable and would not result in significant harm to their health or amenity. There 
are no protected trees within the boundary of the application site, nor within the 
gardens of neighbouring properties. The existing boundary hedge between the 
application property and No. 31 Norrice Lea is located within a retaining wall and 
therefore it is not considered the proposed basement development, in particular the 
lightwells proposed to the side passage will not cause harm to this hedge.  
 
To mitigate against excessive noise and disturbance during construction a 
construction management plan is requested by way of condition. In addition, the 
hours of work that construction can be carried out during have been restricted via the 
implementation of a condition and it is also requested that the wheels of construction 
vehicles are cleaned when leaving the site to prevent unecessary disturbance to the 
highway. 
 
The Hampstead Garden Suburb Trust have given provisional consent to the scheme 
with a number of conditions following an assessment by an independent engineer. 
They could see no reason to object to the proposals on either engineering or 
hydrological grounds.  
 
These proposed alterations are considered to ensure that this proposal would not 
detrimentally impact on the qualities of the building and protect the character of this 
part of the Hampstead Garden Suburb Conservation Area. As conditioned, they 
would preserve the amenities of the occupiers of the neighbouring properties and the 
character and appearance of the individual property, street scene, conservation area 
and area of special character. 
 
3. COMMENTS ON GROUNDS OF OBJECTIONS 
 
The main basis of objections relate to hydrology issues on which the scheme is 
considered to be acceptable. As a result of those objections, the applicant 
commissioned a hydrological report, which was passed on to the objectors for 
comment. A group of objectors commissioned their own hydrology assessment in 
response to the report provided by the applicant. All reports have been further 
assessed by the Council, as well as an independent hydrologist commissioned by 
the Hampstead Garden Suburb Trust. The Council's Principal Structural Engineer 
has commented that the application can be approved on those grounds subject to 
condition 10 recommended above to ensure that he proposed basement 
development does not prejudice the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. The 
condition requires the submission of further information on ground conditions and 
water ground levels before any works start on site.  
 
4. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
The proposals do not conflict with either Barnet Council’s Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in our Equality Scheme and supports the council in meeting its 
statutory equality responsibilities. 

60



5. CONCLUSION 
 
Having taken all material considerations into account, the proposed extension would 
not detrimentally impact on the qualities of this building and protect the character of 
this part of the Hampstead Garden Suburb Conservation Area or the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers. The design of the alteration is such that, as conditioned, it 
preserves the character and appearance of the individual property, street scene, 
conservation area, and area of special character. The construction of the basement 
would have an acceptable on the area and the amenity of neighbouring occupiers 
subject to planning conditions. 
 

61



 
 
SITE LOCATION PLAN: 33 Norrice Lea, London, N2 0RD 
 
REFERENCE:  F/03038/12 
 
 

 
 
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database right 2012. 
All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number LA100017674.  
 

62



 
 
 
LOCATION: The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3YB 
REFERENCE: H/03469/12 Received: 11 September 2012 
  Accepted: 12 September 2012 
WARD(S): West Hendon Expiry: 07 November 2012 
  Final Revisions:  
APPLICANT:  Tesco Stores Ltd 
PROPOSAL: Installation of a new shopfront. 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approve Subject to Conditions 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 10859-204, 10859-203, 10859-201, 10859-202, 
10859-211, 10859-212 Rev A and Planning, Deisgn and Access Statement. 
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 
permission.  
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

INFORMATIVE(S): 
1 The reasons for this grant of planning permission or other planning related 

decision are as follows: - 
 
i)  The proposed development accords with strategic planning guidance and 
policies as set out in The Mayor's London Plan: July 2011 and the Adopted 
Barnet Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012 and Development Management Plan 
(Adopted) 2012 . 
In particular the following polices are relevant: 
 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012  policies :CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
 
Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: DM01. 
ii)  The proposal is acceptable for the following reason(s): - 
 
The proposal is acceptable for the following reason: - Having taken all material 
considerations into account, it is considered that the proposal would comply with 
the Council's policies and guidelines and would not cause unacceptable harm to 
the existing building, the street scene  or the amenities of any neighbouring 
property. 

 1.   MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central 
Government advice and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local 
Planning Authorities must determine applications in accordance with the 
statutory Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise, and that the planning system does not exist to protect the private 
interests of one person against another.  

AGENDA ITEM 11

63



 
The ‘National Planning Policy Framework’ (NPPF) was published on 27 March 
2012. This is a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning 
system less complex and more accessible, and to promote sustainable 
growth. 
 
The London Plan is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan. 
 
The NPPF states that "good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute 
positively to making places better for people."   
 
NPPF retains presumption in favour of sustainable development. This applies 
unless any adverse impacts of a development would "significantly and 
demonstrably" outweigh the benefits. 
 
The Mayor's London Plan July 2011: 
 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it 
sets out a fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social 
framework for the development of the capital to 2031. It forms part of the 
development plan for Greater London.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are 
designed to ensure that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements 
to their quality of life. 
 
Design Guidance Note No 10 – Shopfronts 

 
This Guidance Note advises on designing shopfronts. The principles and 
guidelines set out below will be used when the council assesses planning 
applications. The main purpose of a shopfront is to display goods on sale. 
Shopfronts help to project the image of a shop. A well designed shopfront 
constructed of quality materials will project a good image and enhance the 
display of items on sale. Shopfronts have a vital role to play in our shopping 
centres. They are obvious to the observer because they are at the pedestrian 
level. They can help to attract shoppers and contribute to the health of a 
shopping centre.  Inappropriate and ill-designed shopfronts can downgrade a 
shopping centre. An attractive centre is more likely to be a profitable shopping 
centre. Historically shopfronts were designed as an integral part of a building. 
They tended to display the basic and timeless lessons of good design, being 
well proportioned and detailed. They had rich decoration to add interest. The 
character and quality of an area is easily eroded by this type of poor, careless 
and unsympathetic alteration. There is no reason why a modern shopfront 
cannot be attractive and relate properly to the design of the building which it 
fronts. By putting careful thought into the design and choosing appropriate 
materials, a modern design of shopfront can enhance the shop and the street, 
while at the same time achieving the type of display necessary in today’s 
competitive retail world. This advice aims to set down a number of   principles 
of good design to enable local retailers, when the opportunity arises, to 

64



improve the image of their shops and thereby the quality of the shopping 
parade or centre generally. The Council and local retailers need to work 
together to ensure that our shopping centres attract shoppers. This design 
guidance is intended to help achieve this. Before choosing a shopfront 
design, you should consider the context that the shopfront will be set in and 
the detailed design. Each shopfront should be designed as a whole and not 
merely as an assembly of separate elements. 

 
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD 
The Council has also adopted (June 2007), following public consultation, a 
Supplementary Planning Document “Sustainable Design and Construction”. 
The SPD provides detailed guidance that supplements policies in the Unitary 
Development Plan, and sets out how sustainable development will be 
delivered in Barnet. Part 6 of the SPD relates to generic environmental 
requirements to ensure that new development within Barnet meets sufficiently 
high environmental and design standards.  
 
Barnet’s Local Plan 
 
Barnet’s Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core 
Strategy and Development Management Policies Development Plan 
Documents (DPD).  
 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: 
 
The Core Strategy was adopted by the Council on September 11 2012. The 
Core Strategy sits at the heart of the Local Plan. It sets out where, when and 
how change will take place, providing a shared vision of what Barnet will be 
like as a place in 2026. 
 
Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
 
Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: 
 
The Development Management Policies document provides the borough wide 
planning policies that implement the Core Strategy. These policies are used 
for day-to-day decision making. 
 
Relevant Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: DM01, DM02. 
 
Relevant Planning History: 
Site history for current landparcel : 
152531 - The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3YB 
Case Reference: H/03469/12 
 
Application: Planning Number: W/09702/C/99 
Validated: 19/10/1999 Type: S63 
Status: DEC Date: 20/12/1999 
Summary: AP Case Officer: Junior C. Moka 
Description: Retention of single storey flat roofed extension at rear of the retail shop. 

 

65



Planning applications picked up in spatial search 
 
Site Address: 16 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09702 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 25/06/1991 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Change of use from shop (Class A1) to Restaurant (Class A3) 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 16 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09702B 
Application Type: Section 192 
Decision: Unlawful Development 
Decision Date: 17/08/1994 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: New shopfront as an extension to that existing at No. 14. 
Case Officer:  

 
Site Address: 14 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09527A 
Application Type: Outline Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 07/11/1990 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: New shop front. 
Case Officer:  
 
Consultations and Views Expressed: 
 
Neighbours Consulted: 82 Replies:     0 
Neighbours Wishing To Speak 0     
 
The objections raised may be summarised as follows: 
 
One general petition was received, objecting to the presence of Tesco generally. 
 
101 signatures were collected. However, only 39 are valid as they have been 
accompanied by an address. 
 
Internal /Other Consultations: 
 
None 
 
2. PLANNING APPRAISAL 
 
Site Description and Surroundings: 
 
The application site is a shop unit which is located on the corner of Vivian Avenue 
and Alderton Crescent. The site is located within the primary retail frontage of 
Hendon Central Town Centre. 

66



Proposal: 
 
The applicant wishes to install a new shopfront whilst retaining as much of the 
existing facade as possible. The main change will be the implementation of 
automatic double sliding doors to the centre of the left hand section of the frontage 
facing Vivian Avenue. The existing front elevation is comprised of two large glass 
panels and a large set of double sliding doors. The proposal will see a reduction in 
the size of the double sliding doors and an extra glazed panel to the right of them. 
The shopfront on the side elevation will remain largely unchanged. 
 
Planning Considerations: 
 
The main considerations are the impacts on the property, the surrounding area and 
on any neighbouring properties. 
 
The changes to the existing shopfront, include reducing the size of the doors on the 
front elevation and as a result the inclusion of an extra panel of glazing to the 
shopfront. It is considered that the proposed changes are relatively minor and given 
the wide variety of shopfronts along the Hendon Central town centre the proposal 
would be acceptable in planning terms. 
 
It is considered that the application will not give rise to any loss of amenity to any 
neighbouring property, or harm the appearance of the building, the surrounding area 
and the character of the street scene. 
 
3. COMMENTS ON GROUNDS OF OBJECTIONS 
 
A petition was received objecting to the presence of Tesco in the town centre. 
 
4. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
The proposals do not conflict with either Barnet Council’s Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in our Equality Scheme and supports the council in meeting its 
statutory equality responsibilities. 
 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
Having taken all material considerations into account, it is considered that the 
proposal would comply with the Council's policies and guidelines and would not 
cause unacceptable harm to the, the existing building, the street scene or the 
amenities of any neighbouring property.  
 
It is therefore recommended that the application be APPROVED. 

67



 
 
SITE LOCATION PLAN: The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, 
NW4 3YB 
 
REFERENCE:  H/03469/12 
 
 

 
 
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database right 2012. 
All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number LA100017674.  
 

68



 
 
 
LOCATION: The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3YB 
REFERENCE: H/03475/12 Received: 11 September 2012 
  Accepted: 12 September 2012 
WARD(S): West Hendon Expiry: 07 November 2012 
  Final Revisions:  
APPLICANT:  Tesco Stores Ltd 
PROPOSAL: Installation of a new ATM. 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approve Subject to Conditions 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans numbers :10895-203, 10895-204, 10895-312 
Rev A, 10895-202, 10895-201 and Planning, Design and Access Statement  
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 
permission.  
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 
2004. 

INFORMATIVE(S): 
1 The reasons for this grant of planning permission or other planning related 

decision are as follows: - 
i)  The proposed development accords with strategic planning guidance and 
policies as set out in The Mayor's London Plan: July 2011, the Core 
Strategy (2012) and the Development Management Policies (2012). 
 
In particular the following polices are relevant: 
 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
 
Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: DM01, DM02, DM17. 
ii)  The proposal is acceptable because it preserves the visual amenities of 
the locality and the residential amenities of adjoining occupiers. 
The proposal is considered to comply with Council Policy and would not 
materially compromise community safety or increase the risk of crime taking 
place in the area 

2 The applicant is advised that the installation of an ATM Privacy Space 
should be considered.  Guidance on Privacy Spaces has been provided via 
the Local Government Association Alert no. 36/07 Cash Machines- 'Privacy 
Space' markings on the ground in front of cash machines significantly 
reduce the incidence of robbery. 

 
 1.   MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
National Planning Policy: 
 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central 
Government advice and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local 

AGENDA ITEM 12

69



Planning Authorities must determine applications in accordance with the 
statutory Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, 
and that the planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of 
one person against another.  
 
The ‘National Planning Policy Framework’ (NPPF) was published on 27 March 
2012. This is a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning 
system less complex and more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 
 
The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how 
these are expected to be applied. It sets out the Government’s requirements for 
the planning system only to the extent that it is relevant, proportionate and 
necessary to do so. It provides a framework within which local people and their 
accountable councils can produce their own distinctive local and neighbourhood 
plans, which reflect the needs and priorities of their communities. 
 
Paragraph 67 states that “poorly placed advertisements can have a negative 
impact on the appearance of the built and natural environment. Control over 
outdoor advertisements should be efficient, effective and simple in concept and 
operation. Only those advertisements which will clearly have an appreciable 
impact on a building or on their surroundings should be subject to the local 
planning authority's detailed assessment. Advertisements should be subject to 
control only in the interests of amenity and public safety, taking account of 
cumulative impacts”. 
 
The Mayor's London Plan July 2011: 
 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it 
sets out a fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social 
framework for the development of the capital to 2031. It forms part of the 
development plan for Greater London.  
 
Barnet Local Plan Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: 
 
Barnet’s Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core 
Strategy and Development Management Policies Development Plan 
Documents (DPD).  
 
Relevant Core Strategy Policies (Adopted) 2012: CS NPPF, CS. 
 
Barnet Local Plan Development Management Policies (Adopted 2012): 
 
The Development Management Policies document provides the borough wide 
planning policies that implement the Core Strategy. These policies are used for 
day-to-day decision making. 
 
Relevant Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012: DM01, DM11, 
DM17. 
 
 

70



Relevant Planning History: 
Site history for current landparcel : 
152531 - The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3YB 
Case Reference: H/03475/12 
 
Site Address: 16 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09702 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 25/06/1991 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Change of use from shop (Class A1) to Restaurant (Class A3) 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 16 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09702B 
Application Type: Section 192 
Decision: Unlawful Development 
Decision Date: 17/08/1994 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: New shopfront as an extension to thatexisting at No. 14. 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 14 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09527 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 31/07/1990 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Enclosure of yard to form single-storey rearextension 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 14 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09527A 
Application Type: Outline Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 07/11/1990 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: New shop front. 
Case Officer:  

 
Consultations and Views Expressed: 
 
Neighbours Consulted: 82 Replies:     0 
Neighbours Wishing To Speak 0     
 
A petition was received as part of the consultation 
 
One general petition was received, objecting to the presence of Tesco generally. 
 
101 signatures were collected. However, only 39 are valid as they have been 
accompanied by an address. 

71



The objections raised may be summarised as follows: 
None received 
 
Internal /Other Consultations: 
 

• Metropolitan Police Service   
 
2. PLANNING APPRAISAL 
 
Site Description and Surroundings: 
 
The application site is comprised of two shop units (Nos 14 and 16) on the corner of 
Vivian Avenue and Alderton Crescent. The site is located within the primary retail 
frontage of Hendon Central town centre and currently appears to be vacant. The 
floors above the two shop units are comprised of residential dwellings. 
 
Proposal: 
 
This application seeks consent for the installation of a new ATM (cash machine). The 
new ATM unit would be inserted within the shopfront and would measure 2450mm 
high and 1130mm wide and the keypad would be 885mm above the ground level. 
The ATM unit would have an external light fitted above the actual ATM itself at a 
height of 2.45m above ground level. The proposed ATM would not project beyond 
the proposed shop facade. 
 
Planning Considerations: 
 
The main considerations are whether or not the proposal is appropriate to the area 
and whether it would give rise to an increase in crime.  
As the application site falls within the primary retail frontage it is considered that 
ATM's are appropriate at this site. Crime, as fear or reality prevents people from 
enjoying the full use of their environment. The council is committed to reducing 
opportunities for crime and fear of crime. In terms of the impact of the installation of 
this ATM on people’s perception of crime and crime itself, this development is not 
considered to result in crime or opportunities for crime. The subject property lies 
within the Hendon Central Town Centre which has a sufficient level of natural 
surveillance as a result of the amount of pedestrian footfall and passing vehicular 
traffic. The streets and paths in the immediate vicinity are well and appropriately lit. It 
is considered that the development as proposed would not lead to opportunities to 
commit crime or affect people's feelings of safety and security. 
 
The proposed ATM is considered is to have an acceptable impact on the character 
of the street scene and general area and on the appearance of the subject property. 
Equipment such as ATMs are recognised as being part and parcel of a functioning 
viable town centre and in light of this, introducing an ATM in this location is not 
considered to be inappropriate.  
 
As a result of the above, this application is therefore recommended for approval, 
subject to conditions. 
 

72



3. COMMENTS ON GROUNDS OF OBJECTIONS 
 
Petition received and noted but considering the factors above the application is 
considered acceptable. 
 
4. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
The proposals do not conflict with either Barnet Council’s Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in our Equality Scheme and supports the council in meeting its 
statutory equality responsibilities. 
 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
The proposed ATM is considered to have an acceptable impact on the character of 
the street scene and general area 

73



 
 
SITE LOCATION PLAN: The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, 
NW4 3YB 
 
REFERENCE:  H/03475/12 
 
 

 
 
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database right 2012. 
All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number LA100017674.  
 

74



 
 
 
 
LOCATION: The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3YB 
REFERENCE: H/03658/12 Received: 26 September 2012 
  Accepted: 02 October 2012 
WARD(S): West Hendon Expiry: 27 November 2012 
  Final Revisions:  
APPLICANT:  Tesco Stores Ltd 
PROPOSAL: Installation of 3no. Air Conditioning units and 1no. condenser 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approve Subject to Conditions 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 10859-204, 10859-203, 10859-202, 10859-201 and 
10895-512 Rev C. 
Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 
permission.  
Reason: 
To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

3 The level of noise emitted from the air conditioning units hereby approved shall 
be at least 5dB(A) below the background level, as measured from any point 1 
metre outside the window of any room of a neighbouring residential property. 
If the noise emitted has a distinguishable, discrete continuous note (whine, hiss, 
screech, hum) and/or distinct impulse (bangs, clicks, clatters, thumps), then it 
shall be at least 10dB(A) below the background level, as measured from any 
point 1 metre outside the window of any room of a neighbouring residential 
property. 
Reason: 
To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of neighbouring properties. 

INFORMATIVE(S): 
1 The reasons for this grant of planning permission or other planning related 

decision are as follows: - 
i)  The proposed development accords with strategic planning guidance and 
policies as set out in The Mayor's London Plan: July 2011 and the Adopted 
Barnet Local Policies. 
In particular the following polices are relevant: 
 
Core Strategy (Submission version) 2011: CS 5 
 
Development Management Policies (Submission version)2011: DM01, DM02 
 
ii)  The proposal is acceptable for the following reason(s): - Having taken all 
material considerations into account, it is considered that subject to compliance 
with the attached conditions, the proposal would comply with the Council's 
policies and guidelines and would not cause unacceptable harm to the area, the 
existing building or the amenities of any neighbouring property. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 13

75



 1.   MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: 
 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government 
advice and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning 
Authorities must determine applications in accordance with the statutory 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, and that the 
planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person against 
another.  
 
National planning policies are set out in the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF). This 65 page document was published on 27 March 2012 and it replaces 44 
documents, including Planning Policy Guidance Notes, Planning Policy Statements 
and a range of other national planning guidance. The NPPF is a key part of reforms 
to make the planning system less complex and more accessible. 
 
The London Plan is recognised in the NPFF as part of the development plan. 
 
The NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the 
achievement of sustainable development. The document includes a ‘presumption in 
favour of sustainable development’. This is taken to mean approving applications, 
such as this proposal, which are considered to accord with the development plan. 
 
The Mayor's London Plan July 2011: 
 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets 
out a fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for 
the development of the capital to 2031. It forms part of the development plan for 
Greater London.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to 
ensure that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of 
life. 
 
The Mayor for London has introduced a Community Infrastructure Levy. This applied 
from 1 April 2012 to most developments in London where the application is 
determined by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Within Barnet the levy is charged at a rate of £35 per square metre of net additional 
floorspace. 
 
Core Strategy (Adopted) 2012: 
 
The Core Strategy was adopted by the Council on September 11 2012.  
 
Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
 
Development Management (Adopted) 2012: 
 

76



The Development Management Policies document provides the borough wide 
planning policies that implement the Core Strategy.  
 
Relevant Development Management Policies: DM01, DM02, DM04. 
 

Relevant Planning History: 

Site history for current landparcel : 
152531 - The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3YB 
Case Reference: H/03658/12 
 
Planning applications picked up in spatial search 
 
Site Address: 16 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09702 
Application Type: Full Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 25/06/1991 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: Change of use from shop (Class A1) to Restaurant (Class A3) 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 16 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09702B 
Application Type: Section 192 
Decision: Unlawful Development 
Decision Date: 17/08/1994 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: New shopfront as an extension to thatexisting at No. 14. 
Case Officer:  

  
Site Address: 14 Vivian Avenue LONDON NW4 
Application Number: W09527A 
Application Type: Outline Application 
Decision: Approve with conditions 
Decision Date: 07/11/1990 
Appeal Decision: No Appeal Decision Applies 
Appeal Decision Date:   No Appeal Decision Date exists 
Proposal: New shop front. 
Case Officer:  

 
Enforcement Notices picked up in spatial search 
 
None 
 
Consultations and Views Expressed: 
 
 Neighbours Consulted: 83 Replies:     2 
Neighbours Wishing To Speak 0     
 
One petition of 101 signatures was received objecting to the presence of Tesco in 
the town centre.  
 
The objections raised may be summarised as follows: 

77



- Tesco will cause demise of other convenience businesses in the local area 
 
One comment received was in support of the application. 
 
Internal /Other Consultations: 
 

• Environmental Health -  
 
On advice of the environmental health officer a condition has been imposed as a part 
of the conditional approval regarding the noise generated by the Air Conditioning 
Equipment 
 
Date of Site Notice: 18 October 2012 
 
2. PLANNING APPRAISAL 
 
Site Description and Surroundings: 
 
The application site is a shop unit which is located on the corner of Vivian Avenue 
and Alderton Crescent. The site is located within the primary retail frontage of 
Hendon Central Town Centre. 
 
Proposal: 
 
The proposal relates to the installation of three air conditioning units to the rear court 
yard and one condenser. Following some amendments one of the larger units has 
now been reduced in height and louvered fencing has been introduced to one 
elevation to reduce the visual impact from Vivian Avenue. 
 
Planning Considerations: 
 
When considering the impact of this development it has to be noted that the 
condenser units are not prominently located nor would they be perceived readily 
from any public viewpoint. The harmonious character set out by the street façade 
would be preserved.  
 
In this particular case the air conditioning units would be seen from Vivian Avenue. In 
order to mitigate the negative visual impact of these units from the Town Centre the 
applicant has proposed louvered screens which would allow sound/noise to pass 
through, but would limit visual impact from the Town Centre. Such a measure would 
help to maintain the townscape and lessen the impact on the area's character. 
 
Turning to the matter of noise, following advice from the Environmental Health team 
a condition has been imposed as a part of the conditional approval. The applicant 
has also provided, on request, a list of mitigation measures that will be incorporated 
in order to reduce noise levels. Considering these facts, the application is considered 
acceptable. 
 
It is considered that the application will not give rise to any loss of amenity to any 
neighbouring property, or harm the appearance of the building, the surrounding area 

78



and the character of the street scene. 
 
 
3. COMMENTS ON GROUNDS OF OBJECTIONS 
 
A petition was received objecting to the presence of Tesco in the Hendon Central 
Town Centre generally. 
 
4. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
The proposals do not conflict with either Barnet Council’s Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in our Equality Scheme and supports the council in meeting its 
statutory equality responsibilities. 
 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
Having taken all material considerations into account, the proposal would not 
detrimentally impact on the qualities of the building and protect the character of the 
area. The proposed alterations are such that, as conditioned, it preserves the 
amenities of the occupiers of the neighbouring properties and the character and 
appearance of the individual properties and street scene. APPROVAL is 
recommended. 
 

79



 
 
SITE LOCATION PLAN: The Post Shop Ltd, 14 Vivian Avenue, London, 
NW4 3YB 
 
REFERENCE:  H/03658/12 
 
 

 
 
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database right 2012. 
All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number LA100017674.  
 
 
 

80


	Agenda
	7 7 Accommodation Road_F03540
	8 44 Purcells Avenue_H03172
	9 14 Dollis Avenue _ F02194
	14 Dollis Avenue _ Appendix A

	10 33 Norrice Lea_F03038
	11 The Post Shop_14 Vivian Avenue_H03469
	12 The Post Shop_14 Vivian Avenue_H03475
	13 The Post Shop_14 Vivian Avenue_H03658

